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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Centrum Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of Centrum Financial Services Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the IND AS

financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid IND AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the losses and total comprehensive
loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under

section 143(10) of the Act (SAs), Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI")
together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the IND AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IND AS financial statements.

Keyv Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the IND

AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the IND AS
financial statements as a whole, and-in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report,

Information Other than the IND AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the IND AS financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon, The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the IND AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identificd above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the IND AS financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these IND AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the IND
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and co
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IND AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the IND AS financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the IND AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1 our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial
statements,

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the ’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
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explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given (o us:

a.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses:

¢. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection FFund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{c), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material
misstatement,

¢. The company has not declared any dividend during the Financial Year, hence reporting in respect to
compliance under section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

f.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companics
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Rggjgtration No.: 109463 W

209, Comtoe Pawd Didg,

Narottam Shah 106, In, Asdudin Nopd, | W
Partner Dpp. Bdarat B21s Linema, (%)
Membership Number: 106355 el J&//  Date: May 11,2023

UDIN: 23106355BGXIZA3505 Place: Mumbai
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Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the
IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report the following:

1)
a. The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment as on March 31, 2023, hence reporting under
paragraph 3(i)(a), 3(i)(b), 3(i)(c) and 3(i)(d) is not applicable.
b. To the best of our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

a, The Company is a Non — Banking Finance Company (CIC-ND-SI) and does not hold any inventory. Thus, paragraph
3(iif(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the financial year, Hence reporting under
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

3) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made investments in other companies during the
year. The company has not provided any guarantee or security, granted loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership and other parties, during the year.

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not provided any
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity, during
the year. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the investments made are not prejudicial to
the company’s interest.

¢. As on March 31, 2023 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest is not applicable.

d. As on March 31, 2023 the company has no loan receivable, Accordingly, reporting in respect of overdue amounts is
not applicable.

¢.  Ason March 31, 2023 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of renewal or extension
of loan amount is not applicable,

f.  As on March 31, 2023 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of loans cither
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment is not applicable.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186(1) of the Companies Act 2013 in respect to making investments as applicable. Further,
as the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the business of financing, the provision of section 186
{except for subsection (1)) are not applicable to the Company.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable.

6) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products of the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable.
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7)
a.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including,
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty of
customs, goods and services tax, professional tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrcars as at March
31, 2023, for a period of more than six months.

b. There are no dues outstanding with respect to, income tax, sales tax, services tax, value added tax, GST, customs
duty, excise duty on account of any dispute, except:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute which the | dispute is
amount relates | pending
Income  Tax | Income Tax 18,62,870 | AY 2010-11 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax 61,22,030% | AY 2011-12 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax 1,84,27.940% | AY 2012-13 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax 291,920 | AY 2018-19 Assessing
Act, 1961 Officer
Income  Tax | Income Tax 16,72,498 | AY 2020-21 Assessing
Act, 1961 Officer

*Net of taxes paid

8) There are no transactions relating to unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9)

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, financial institutions, government or dues to debenture
holders during the year.

b. The company is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

The company has prima facie utilised the moneys raised by way of debt instruments and inter corporate deposits
during the year for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. ,
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d. Funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes. The company has invested Rs. 11,000
lakhs in M/s. Centrum Wealth Limited funded from short term Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD) from the holding
company - M/s. Centrum Capital Limited.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary company.

£, The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in the subsidiary company.

@

10)
4. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
b.  The company has not made any private placement of shares or debentures during the year and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable,

11)

a. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the [inancial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by
the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢.  We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto
the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of relevant records and
representation, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the IND-AS financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

14)
a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business.
b. We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till
date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

15) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

16)
a.  The company is required to register under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the registration
has been obtained by the Company.
b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve W Act, 1934,
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¢, According to the information and explanation given to us, we report that the Company is a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and continues to fulfil the criteria of
a CIC.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management of the Company, the Group has only
one CIC.

17) The company has incurred cash loss in the financial year of Rs. 100.21 lakhs. The Company had not incurred cash losses in
the previous year.

18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. The management of the company has represented that in
the event of necessity, its holding company will provide funds to meet its obligations. We further state that our reporting is
based on the representation from the management and facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section
{5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of
the Order are not applicable,

21) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the Company,
Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report,

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration No.: 109463 W

Narottam Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 106355
UDIN: 23106355BGXIZA3505

Date: May 11, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditors Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements of Centrum Financial
Services Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to

the IND AS financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind AS financial

statements
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements is a

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detecti uthorized acquisition, use, or disposition

Delhi Office : 52/74, Ramjas Road, Karol Baugh, New Delhi - 110 005.+
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind AS
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm pstration No.: 109463 W

Narottam Shah
Partner o [ 260 ContPonk g\

Membership Number: 106355 ety o Date: May 11,2023
UDIN: 23106355BGXIZA3505 Place: Mumbai

Delhi Office : 52/74, Ramjas Road, Karol Baugh, New Delhi - 110 005.Tel.: 011 - 2872 2222 / 33333 +E-mail : delhi@shahtaparia.com
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AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(T in lakh)
Quarter Ended Year Ended
Sr. No| Particulars 31-03-2023 31-12-2022 31-03-2022 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Audited* Unaudited* Audited* Audited _Audited
(1) [Other income - 779,14 - 779.14 -
(2) |Total income - 779.14 - 779.14 -
(3) |Expenses
(n) |Finance costs 21269 198.24 186.70 812,24 310.55
(b) |Employee benefits expenses 5.02 3.01 - 8.56 -
(b) [Other expenses 30,10 8.30 18.89 58.54 22.37
Total expenses (a)+H(b)+(c) 247.81 209,55 205,59 879.34 332,92
(4) [Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (2) - (3) (247.81) 569.59 (205.59) (100.20) (332.92)
(5) |Exceptional Items - - - - -
(6) | Profit/(loss) before tax (4) - (5) (247.81) 569.59 (205.59) (100.20) (332.92)
(7) [Income tax expense:
(a) « Current tax Z = . = L
(b) - Deferred tax - - - - -
(c) - Excess short of earlier Years - - - - -
Total tax expense (a)Hh) - - - - -
(8) [Profit{loss) for the period from Continuing Operations(6) - (7) (247.81) 569.59 (205.59) (100.20) (332.92)
(9) [Profit before tax for the year from Discontinued Operations - - (2.83) - 65318
(10) |Tax expense! (credit) of Discontinued Operations
(a) | - Current tax - - - -
(b} |« Deferred tax - - - - 407.33
(¢) | = (ExcessVShort provision of earlier years - - - - -
Total tax expense/ (credit) of Discontinued Operations (a)+(b)+(c) - - - - 407,33
(11) |Net Profit for the vear from Discontinued ations (9)-(10) - - (2.83) - 245.85
(12) [NetProfit/ (Loss) for the year (8)+(11) (247.81) 569.59 (208.42) (100.20) (87.07)
a3 Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Continuing Operations
(a) |-~ Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(b} |- Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income! (expenses) - Continuing Operations (a)
+(b) - - - - -
a9 Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Discontinued Operations
(@) |lems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-cmployment benefit obligations - - 290 - (17.21)
- Income tax relating to these items - - (0.05) - 5.01
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - . 5
Totul Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Discontinued Operations
(a)+(b) - - 2.85 (12.20)
(15) |Total comprehensive income for the year (12) + (13) + (14) (247.81) 569.59 (205.57) (100.20) (99.28)
(16) |Earnings per equity share (Not annualised)
Face value of T10 per share
- Basic (2)
- From Continuing Operations {0.25) 0.58 0.21) (0.10) (0.34)
- From Discontinued Operations - . {0.00) - 0.25
- Diluted (3)*
- From Continuing Operations (0.25) 0.58 {(0.21) {0.10) (0.34)
- From Discontinued Operations - - (0,00) - 023
Total EPS (Continuing and Discontinued operations)
- Basic (INR) (0.25) 058 (0.21) (0.10) (0.09)
= Diluted (INR) (0.25}) 0.58 (0.21) (0, 10) (0.09)




Notes
1. The above financial results of Centrum Financial Services Limited (“the Company”}) have been reviewed by the Audit Commitiee and approved by the Board of Dircclors at their respective
meetings held on May 11, 2023,

2. These Ind-AS financial results have been prepared for the purposes of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Results by Centrum Capital Limited ("the Holding Company”).

3, * The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022 and the reviewed figured for the quarter ended December 31, 2022 published respectively.
The financial results for the quarter and year ended had been prepared for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial results by Centrum Capital Limited {Holding Company)

4. The Company was primarily engaged in the business of financing. The Company sold its lending business to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited by way of a slump sale pursuant to the
Business Transfer Agreement entered into on 26th October 2021, Therefare, there are no separate reportable segments identified as per Ind AS 108 Segment Reporting

5. RBI vide its letter dated 12 October 2021, granted a license to Centrum Financial Services Limited, a fellow subsidiary company to establish a small finance bank (SFB) as a part of revival/
reconstruction of Punjab and Maharashtra Co-operative Bank Limited (PMC Bank). One of the licensing conditions was that the Company shall cease its lending business and surrender its
NBEC license on the date of commencement of business by Unity Small Finance Bank Limited.

Pursuant to the above, the Company transferred its lending business to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited as a going concern by way of a slump sale on | November 2021, Unity Small
Finance Bank Limited has alrcady commenced its business w.e.f, 1 November 2021, Pursuant to the aforesaid, the Company has discontinued its lending business with effect from 1st
November, 2021, The Company has also applied for ‘NBFC - Core Investment Company’,

Consequent 1o the request for conversion, RBI has cancelled the earlier COR & has issued 0 new COR dated 9th September 2022 permitting the company 1o carry on the business Non-
Deposit taking systematically Important Core [nvestment Company(CIC ND-SI)

6. The above IND AS financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and for the year ended 31st March,2022 have been audited by the statutory auditor, M/s Shah & Taparia
Co.Chartered Accountants,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Centrum Financial Services Limited

2% brr ke,

Mumbai Abhishek Baxi
Date : May 11, 2023 Chief Financial Officer

feg. Ka, 108483w
203, Contre by Bidy
100 D, Aiedy iy Ko,
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Currency ! Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

ASSETS
(I) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(¢) Investments
(d) Other financial assets

(II) Non Financial Assets
(a) Other non financial assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(I) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
i) Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(b) Debt securities
(¢) Deposits

(d) Other financial liabilities

(I1) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Other non-financial liabilities

EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

See accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For SHAH & TAPARIA
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regyftration No. 109463 W

Narottam Shah
Pariner
MembershipNo. 106355

Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2023

Note
No.

L

10
11

13
14

| &2

As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
80.27 87.31
2,758.32 3,658.94
47.090.00 36,140.00
(.04 127.44
49,928.63 40,013.69
32.58 0.41]
32.58 0.41
49,961.21 40,014.10
29.05 64.41
1,509.14 1,509.14
15,975.00 4,869.00
2,758.32 3,786.38
20,271.51 10,228.93
3112 26.39
31.12 26.39
9,895.69 9,895.69
19,762.89 19.863.09
29,658.58 29,758.78
49,961.21 40,014.10

DIN : 00164123

%wy/

Abhishek
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Centrum Financial Services Limited

/\/-

Ranjan Ghosh
Non - Executive Director
DIN : 07592235

Nyy
na Goyal
Company Secretary



Centrum Financial Services Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Ropees in lukhs)

Particulars

Other income 15
Total income

Expenses

Finance costs 16
E 4 d ¥y L fi L 17
Other expenses I8
Total expenses

Profit/(less) before tax before exceptional items

Exceptional items

Profit/{loss) before tax

Tax expense:

= Current tax 19
« Deferred tax

= {Excess)Shart provision of earlier years

Total tax expense

Net Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Profit before tax for the year from Discontinued Operations 20
Tax expense/ (credit) of Discontinued Operations

= Cuarent tax

= Deferred tax 19
= (Excess)'Short provision of carlier years

Total tax expense/ (credit) of Di inued Operations

Net Profit for the year from Discontinued Operations

Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income! (expenses) - Continuing Operations
- lItems that will net be reclassified to profit or Joss
« Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Discontinued Operations
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

= Income tax relating to these items

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Paid-up equity share capital (face value Rs. 10 each)

Earnings per equity share 21
Face value of 10 per share

= Basle ()*

« From Continuing Operations

= From Discontinued Operations

= Diluted (3)*

= From Continuing Operations

= From Discontinued Operations

* Not nnnualised

Total EPS (Continuing and Discontinued operations)
- Basic (2)
= Dilusted (¥)

1&2

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes

As per our report of even date
For SHAH & TAPARIA
Chartered Acofyfit

Narottam Shah
Pariner
Memberstup No 106355

Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
779.14 =
71914 -
R12.24 310,55
8.56 -
58.54 22.37
§79.34 332.91
(100.20) (332.91)
(100.20) (332.91)
(100.20) (332.91)
- 653,18
- 407.33
- 407.33
- 24585
(100.20) (87.06)
(17.21)
= 5.01
- (12.20)
(100.20) (99.27)
9.895.69 9.895.69
(0.10) (0.34)
- 0.2
(0,10} (0.34)
- 0,25
(0.10) (0.09)
(0.10) (0.09)

/
Abhishek Baxi

Chief Financiol Officer

Ranjan Ghosh
Non - Executive Director
DIN: 07592235

h"/\

hawfi Goyal

Secretary




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Cash Bows for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Curroncy  bodises Rupees in lakin)

Particulsrs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cwshi Now from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) befees tax from Cossiing Operations {100.20) (33291)
Profle / (Loss) befoes tax from Discoatinued Operations . ARSI IR
Adfesmenty for
Deprociaton and amortisation . .78
Intevest moome - (6,661 .53)
Finance cost B12.24 56740
Prodit oa sale of share warmest (750.00)
Yroal on fi 14 - 21492
Net gan on far value chasge - (159.97)
N2t gain on derecogaition of fin i under ] o8t capagacy - (327,36)
Proceods from Saks of Not Assets under BTA 31,600,00
Esployoes stock opion provisicn s (597.39)
Gain on alurmg sale througs BTA - (594.26)
Unrealised gain oa optics (1,033.22)
Cash inflow from ieacrest on loans - 6754 84
Cash ostflow towands fesance costs 312.24) (2.389.33)
Operating cash Now before working capital changes (830.20) s
A (Less): Adiustmenis for wovking copial ohanges
Trnds recsivables - 430,95
Loans - A 00T
Other financial 2ssces 127 40 {610.2%)
Other son financisl assess 3210 (a8.61)
Other bark hadinces (127.44) {1,034 56)
Demvative financial imstrument - 2848270
Tradk: and other payablos (35.36) 48455
Other Fancial Liabaliny - 25129
Interest acorued on bamrowings . .
Noa financial labilities and provisi 473 (15397)
Cash used in operations 1913.04) 41,005.33
Incosse taxes paid (For curecnt year under consideration taves paid includes DTA transformed by way - 1977
of shantp sak)
Net canh used in opernting activities -A 1913.04) 4111610

B Cash Bow from investing activitios

Purchase of property, plant and equy intangibk: asscts and goodwill - (3.504.24)
Payment as capital advance . 250.00
Parchase of investments {11,000.00) (33,401.56)
Procoods from sake of investencses 0,00 3,146.79
Net essh generated from / (wsed in) investing activities - B (10,200,00) (33,909.01)

€ Cash fow from finsacing sctivities

Procoeds from isue of &bt securition (13.39)
Repayrment of debt securitics (368474
Proceeds from depossts & bovrowings (other thas debt secarnisns) 16,508 00 693114
Repayment of deposits & borrowings (other than debt securities) {5,492 00 (1467.75)
Payment of kase kabilitics - {9.24)
Net cash gemerated feom financing activities - C 11,106.00 1.786,02
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cask equivalents (A+B+C) 17.04) 8.993.00
Cash and cash equivalent ay 1 the begmning of the year 4731 ¥203 18
Less | Balance smmsferrod theough slump sale (17,108 86)

Cashh and cash equivalent as at e end of e year 8027 K731




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Seatement of Cash Bows for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

{Currency - Indisa Rupees i lakhs)

Particulars
Nodes:
1 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents incheded abiove
Particulars
Cash and cash oquivalonts (refer noce 3)
Laess: Bank overdradt (refier sote 16,4)
Total

For the year ended For the year eaded
March 31, 2003 March 31, 2022
Axat As
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2422
»27 £731
227, 331,

1) Statemeet of cash Pows has boen peeparad under the indieeet mothod as set cut in the lind AS 7 “Staseemest of Cash Flows™ as speafied in $he Companies (Indian

Accountieg Smndands) Redes, 2015,
See acocmpanyesg notes form an imegral past of' the Fisancial Statements
As per our report of even date
For SHAH & TAPARIA

Chartered Accoumians
AL Fire eution No. J0vdas W

Narottam Shah
Farmer
Membership No J(8355

Date: May 11, 2023

For and cn bedall of the Board of Directors of

=

Ghosh
vecutive Director Non - Executive Di
DIN . 00)esi23 DIN 1 07592235
‘P(ﬂ\/\/’ : w
Abhishek h%/
Chief Fimancrad Officer 4 o Secrenay
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financinl statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency - Indian Rupees in lakhs)

2.1

2.0ln

2.1.b

2.1c

214

Background
Centrum Fmnancial Services Limited (the ‘Company') is a O d iled in India 2nd incorporuted on 27 January 1993 under the provisions of the

ey

Companies Act, 1956, ﬂ\eCumpany has received a cemmificate of registrution from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI') on 14 August 2009 1o carry oo the basiness
of Non- Bankmng F CNBFC) sctivitses without accepting public deposts having registration number - B-13 01946,

The entire business of this Company (Defined as 2 Business Undertaking) was sold on an “a4 is where is basis” as a going concern to Unity Small Finsnce Bank

Lid (Unity Bank) oo and with effect from | November 2021 vide a B Transfer Agr (BTA) dated 26 October 2021 l’unuml 10 this, all the assets

and labalities redating 1o the Lending business a3 on the date of BTA along with all the inted risk and ds were ferred 10 the Umity Bank against

their shares. As per the RBI - licence conditson, the Company woukd be regsstered as a NBFC - Core lmﬂim«d Company after the transfer of its busitess 10

Unuty Bank. Consequently, post the BT:\. the Company has applied 1o RBI for 1on of the regi as S ically lmg Nan Deposit Accep
Non Banking Fi inl Company - and Credit Company, into a Core In\atrnml Company. Comequm 1o Ihe request for conversson, RBI hu

cancelied the carlier COR & has sssued 0 new COR dated Sth S ber 2022 permitting the pany 10 carry on the business Noa-Deposit taking
y ically Imp Core |l Campany(CIC ND-SI)

The Company 15 registered with Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) having Corporate Identification number (CIN) - U65910MH1993PLC 192085,

The registered offico is situnted ot 20 Floor, Bombay Mutual Budlding. Dr. D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai-400001.

The f& I of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 were appraved for issue in d with the resolution of the Board of Directors
on May 11,2023

Sigmificant necounting policies

Statement of complinnce with Indian Acconnting Standards (Ins As)

The fi d of the Company have been prepared in d with the provisions of the Comp Ast, 2013 and the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Comp (lndum A 1y Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time 10 time) 1ssued by Ministry of Corporate
Affuirs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013, In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements 1ssued by the | of Ch d A of lndu (ICAl) are also applied along with compliance with other smutory
promulgations require = different Any application guidance/ch / directions issued by RBI or other regulstors are implemented as and wiven
thoy are issued/ applicable

Basis of preparation

C and

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categonized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree 1o which the inpats 1o the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fasr value inis y, which are desersbed as foll

« Level | inpats are quoted paces (unadjusted) in nctive markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at reporting date
* Level 2 mpants are mputs, other than quoted prices inclued within level 1, that are observable for the asset o liabality, either directly or indirectly, and
* Level 3 mnputs are unobservable mpats for the valuation of assets or liabilities

P ion of fimuncial

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division 111 to Schedule 111 10 the Companses
Act, 2013 {“the Act") spplicable for Non- Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Staement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Il AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows™ The disclosure requirements with respect 1o ifems in the Balance Sheel and Staternent of Profit and Loss,
as prescribed in the Schedule 11 to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financinl satements along with the other notes required 1o be
disclosed under the notsfied Ind As

A m the financial are p d i Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to nearest Rupee as permitied by Schedule (11 to the C: ies Act,
2013 Per share data are presonted in Indian Rupee to two decimal places

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and deprecistion
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 1o continue with the camying value of all its property, plant and equsp gnised as at 182 April, 2018
measured 08 per the previcas GAAP, asd use that camrying value as the desmed cost of the propenty, plant and eguipment

PPE are stated at cost less Jated depreciation and impas losses, if any. Cost compases the purchase price and any attrbutable cost of brnging the
asset to its working Jition for its imtended use. B g costs relating to acquisition of PPE which takes substantial period of time 10 get redy for ity
imtended use are also included 10 the extent they relate 10 the period till such assets are ready 10 be put 10 use Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of PPE
are measured as the difference b the net disposal p ds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized m the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognized

D on ble assels s provided on lmxyu fine method over the useful Iw«s of assets upresenbed in Schedule 1f of the Act except some cased The
m:dunl values, useful lives and il d af d 1 of tangible assots are | at each fi | year end and adjusted prospectively

Particulars Estimated wseful life according to the Company

Office equipments 3 Years

Computer and accessories 3 Years

Computer soflware 6 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Furmiture and fixtures 10 Years

Butlding 60 Years

Property, plant and equipment having an onginal cost up to INR 5,000 individually are doprecisted in the yoar of purchase.

As mentioned i Nate 1 above, Pursaant 10 the BTA all the PPE has been transferred to Unity small finance bank limited on 1 N ber 2021, the
curenily hokds no PPE

. Ceatre pe mM, \
Aobeoky Bgad o o

0. 85001 Maty Crsmr 4 ;
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the fimnncial statements as ot and for the year ended March 31,2023

{Currency - Indinn Rupees in lakhs)

2.Le  Intangible nasels
On trassition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 1o comtinue with the carrying value of all its [ntangible Assets recognesod &5 at 1t Apnl, 2018 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying volue as the d; d cont of the gible assets.

The usedul lives of wible assets are d ta be either finite or mdefinite. Intangible assets with finite hives are amortised over the useful economie life
The smortisation penod ad the isaty hod for an gible asset with a finite uwful Iife are reviewed at lesst ot each financaal year-end. Changes in
the :xpo.ud useful hife. or the expected pattern of ption of future f bodied in the mset, are accountod for by changing the

i period or methodology, as approg whach are then treated as changes in The amortisation expense on miangible assets
with fmuw hives is peesented as a separate ling item in the statement of profit ane Joss Amomumm on assets aequired/sold dunng the year is recognised on a
pro-rata basss to the Stsement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisiton/sale.

A 13 caleulated wsing 1he straight-line method 10 write down the cost of intangible assets 1o their residual values aver thesr estimated useful lives
Intanble nssets compasing of soft are d on a straight-line basis over a period of 6 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.
Goodwill represents exeess of the cost of portfobio scquisition aver the net fasr value of the idemsifiable assers and labilities. Goodwill paid on scquisition of

partfolsa is included in intangille assets. Goodwill recognized is tested for impairment annually and whon there are indications that the carrying amount may
exceed the recoverable smount

As mentionad in Note | above, Pursuant 10 the BTA all the Intangible Assets hus been transferred to Unity small finance bank limited on | November 2021, the
company currently hokds no Insangshle Assets

240 | ible assets under devel
It includes assets not ready for the intended use and are canmed at cost, comprising direct cost and related mcidental expenses

2.hp  Investment property
lnvcumem properties e properties that are held for iong-wlm rnmah yields or for capital appeeciatson. Investment pmpemu are mmnlly measured at :nal.
costs Subsequent 10 initial 8 1] prop are sated ot cost less dep =l {
nmpmrmcm loas, i any

In are & | using the strasght-li hod over their useful lives. In propectios g Ity have useful lives of 60 years. The
useful hife hru been dmnumcd based on techmcal evaluation performsed by the management expert,

Though the company the propeny using cost based measurement, the fasr value of the investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair

values are determined based on an annual evaluation,

Investment properties are derecogmized either when they have been disposed off’ or when they are permanendly withdrawn from their use and 5o futsre
benefit is expected from their disposal The difference b the net disposal p ds and the carying amount of the asset is recognized in peofit

ar loss in the periodd of derecognition

2.Lh Impairment of non-financinl nssets
As at the end of each g year, the Company the caryng amounts of its PPE, mvestment propesty and mntangible assets 1o determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an imy loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, property and intangsble assets are tested
for impairment 50 as to determine the impasement loss, if any, Goodwill and imangible assets with sndefinite usefisl lives and intangsble assets ot yet available
for use are tested for imy ot least Iy, and wh there is an indication then the asset may be impaired.

loss 18 recognized when the carrying amount of an asset Is its bl R bl tis the higher of fair value less costs of

dupoul and valwe i use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discouanted 1o fheir present value using o pretax discount rate that reflects
estrrent market assessnents of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of futuee cash flows have not been adjusted

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash g ng unit) is 1 10 be Jess than us carrying amount, such defu:n 15 recogmized immedsately in the
Staterment of Profit and Loss as impaioment Toss and ﬂw carrying amount of the asset (or cash g & wnit) is reduced to its bl Far this
purpese, the impairment loss recognized in respect of a cash gencrating unit is allocated first to reduu m carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 10 such
cash generating unit and then 10 reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rati basis.

210 Revenuo recognition

Interest income
lmercn u-come s mognued by applng the Effective Interest Rate {EIR) 1o the gross carrying amount of finsscial assels other than credit-impaired assets and
| assets ol d as d at FVTPL The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fisture cash payments of recepls

througls the expected tife of the finmncial instrument
The caleulation of the EIR mcludes all transaction cost and fees that are incrementsl and directly attribusable to the ion of a fi | nsset.
The inerest income 15 caloulated by spplyng the EIR 1o the gross mynu amount of no»-aadu impaires ﬁnmcnnl assets {i.c. at the amomud cast of the
finsncial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss all ). Foe credst-imp | nssets the interest | is calculated by ag g the EIR
1o the amortized cost of the mdal-ampured finuncial assets (i e the gross caryng less the all for expected credit losses (F.Cl.s)) The Cunpvny
ssesses the collectability of e inverest an credit impaired assets at each reposting date Based on the of such the Interest income accrued
on eredit smpaired financial sssets are either sccounted for as income of witten off’
I frans bl d ing 15 recognised over the tenure of the imstrument 50 as to provide a constant periodic rate of refum,
Dividend income
Dividend income 18 recognized when the Company's right 1o receive dividend is established by the reporting date. It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow 10 the entity. Amount of dividend can be d relably
Wmhnmmfm

dication foes 18 d over the peniod as customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits, as the perft bligatons are pheted

based on achievement of milestones us per the mandates’s agreement with the clients or terms confirmed and agroed by the client
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 1o the flinnncial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency  Indaan Rupees in lnkls)

Feex and commission income

Foes such s consultancy fees, referrul fees and commission income inclisde fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR and are recognised on acerual
basis based on | terms. Pr ing fees earned on Supply Chain Finance Business i recognised on accrial basss anxd does not form part of EIR as it
Leing shoet ferm in nature.

Remtul income
Rental income & recognized over o period of time as and when sccrued ss per the terms of the contract.

Net CGuin/Loss o fair value changey
Any differences between the faur values of financial assets classified as faar value through the peofit or Joss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is
recognised as an unrealised gaim / loss In cases there 1s 2 net gain 10 the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes™ under Revenue

from operations and i there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Exjs " in the of Profit and Loss
Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of fi | d st FYTPL and debt mstruments measured at FYOC] s recognised in net gain / loss
on fuir value changes As at the reporting date the Company does not have any financial d at FVTPL and debe mstruments measured at
FVOCI
However, net gain / boss on d I af fi | lassafied as ised cost is p d separately under the respective head in the Statement
of Profit anil Loss
Other operational revenwe
Other op | revenue rep ncome earned from the activit idental to the b and 15 recogmzed when the nght to receive the income is
established s per the terms of the contract,
Other income and expenses
Other and are recognised in the poriod in which they occur,

2.1} Lenses
The Company as a lesvee
The Company assesses whether o contract contains a Jease, st inception of' a A I8, or o lease if the comtract conveys the nght 1o
control the use of an sdentified nsset for a period of time 1n exchange for consideration. To assess wisether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
dentified asset, the Company dether: (1) the fves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company bas substantially all of the economic

benefits from wse of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the night 10 direct the use of the asset.

At the date of comemencement of the lease, the Company recogaizes a tight-of-use asset (“ROU") and a correspondang lease liability for all kease arrangements
in whach 1t 15 a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shor-term and Jow value leases,

the Company recognizes the lease pay as an operabmg expense on a straght-line basis over the term of the lease
Certann Jease arrang lude the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease habilities includes these
P when i is aly certain that they will be exercised.

The nght-of-use assets are initally recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the Jease liability adjusted rm uny lease pzymnnu made & or pror
to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease ives. They are subsequently d ot cost less socumulated
deprocaation and impasment losses.

Right-of-use ussets are depeeciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the bease term and useful life of the underlying
asset

The lease liability 15 instially measured at amortized cost at the peesent value of the fisture lease payments. The lease pryments are discounted using the interest

e lmplicu in the lease oe, if not readily determinable, using the i Al 1g rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease Habilities are
| with a di dj 10 the related right of use asset if the Compmy ges 1ty 1f whether it will an ion or a

lermination option Luu Iubllmel are remeasured af fair value at the balance sheet date with the ponding impact idered in the of profit

and loss s interest charge’ incol

Lease liability and ROU asse: bave been ly d wn the Bal Sheet and Jease payments have been classified as financang cash flows

The Company ax u lessor

Leases for which the Company 15 & lessor is classified as a fi or g Jease. Wh the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards of awnership 1o the lessee, the 1s classified us a fin lene All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company 1 an intermedinte Jessor, it for s i m the head lease and the subl parately. The sublease is classified as a finance or

operating lease by refererce to the nght-of-use asset arising from the hesd lease

For opersting deases, rental 15 recogmized 00 o straght line basis over the term of the relevant lease
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(Currency ! Indian Rupees in lakhs)

2.0k Flanncial lastruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financaal
liubslity or equity instrument of another entity

Imitial moxm'h'mv wond mueasurement

F | susets :nd fi | linbilities are recognised when the entity beconses a party to !hc contractusal pravisions of the nstrament. Regular way purchase
and sale of fi I nswets are nised on trade-date, the date on which the Company 10 purchase or sefl the asset
At initial recagr the Campany safi | asset (other than trade recervables) or financanl Hability 21 as far volue plus or nenus, transaction costs

that are sncremental and directly atirdbutable 10 the acquisibon or issue of the financsal asset of financial liability (other than financial asset or financial liability
carnied at fair value through peofit or loss). Transsction costs of financial assets aodd financial labilites carned at fair value through profis or loas are expensed

in profit oc loss

Financial assety

Chrssification and sub t ement

Fi | nssets are classified into three categories

» fair value throsgh profit or Joss (FVTPL),

« fair value through Other comprehensive income (FYOCIY, or

* amorised cost

The classification depends on the entity's busi maodel for agng the fi | nssets and the | termis including | cash flows.

For debt instruments, classification will depend on the busness model i which the debt is held

Far equity mstruments, classification will depend on whﬂhet the Campany has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition ta account for e
equity investmsent at fair value th wh other prek

The classification reguirensents of fi nmcml asscts are ducnbed below

Debt instruments
Debl mnstraments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective.

Business model: The busmess moded reflects how the Company manages the assets i order 10 generate cash flows. That is, whether the Company's objective is
solely 1o collect the contractunl cash flows from the assets or 18 10 collect both the contractual cash flows and cash Mows from the sale of asset If neither of
these 1 apphcable (e g finnnciad assets are held for nding purposes). then the fi | nssets are clmsifiod as part of ‘other' b model and | a
FVTPL Factors idered by the Company in d ining the business moded for & Company of assets include past experience on how the cash Nlows for
these assets were collected, how risks are assessed and managed. Securities held for rading are held princapally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are
part of a portfolio of financial instruents thin are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent nctual pattem of shm«mn pml'u-ukm; 1'hau
secunties are classified in the ‘other’ business model and measured ot FVTPL. The business model assessment is based on 1 bly exp

wiathout taking ‘'worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenanos milo account. .

SPPL Where the business model 15 to hold assets 10 collect contractual cash flows oe 10 collect contractunl cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether
the fmnuncial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal an imerest (the 'SPPI test), In making this the Comp 1
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i e interest includes only comndenuon for the time value of money, credit
nisk, other base lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic bending arrangement.

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the falk i three categaries

Amortised cost: Financsal assets that are hedd for collection of contractual cash flows where business model of those cash flows represents solely payment of
pnnc:pnl and imterest (SPPI'), and that are not dn-smm! o FVTPL, are measured ot amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adyusted by any

cpected credit loss all recognised and . Intorest i from these financsal assets are recognised using the effective interest rate method,
Fuir value through other comprelensive (FYOCI)y i 1al assets are d mt FVOCIH when the instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractunl cash flows and selling financial assets and | terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI
lest,

FVOC] financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and Josses ansing due 1o changes in fase value recognised in other comp
u\:ome (0('1] Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same o for fi | sssets | ot
! cost. On d g | gains or losses previously recognised in OCT are reclassified 1o Statement of profit and loss account

Fair vulue through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets that do not meet the critena for amontised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL Financial assets
designated ot FNTPL are carried in the Balance sheet ot finr value with net changes in fair value presented as other (gmlmom in Smamml of profit or loss
Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTPL is not recognised in net gain{loss) on fair value changes and is recogs P ly as interest income

Equity instruments

Equity instraments 15 a contract that evidences residual snterest in the assets of the Campany after deducting all its linbifities. The Company subsequently
measures all equaty investments under the scope of Ind AS 109 st fair value Changes in the fiir value of these instruments are recognized in profit or Joss
Empairment losses (and reversal of impatnment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTPL are not reported sepasately from other changes in fir value
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(Currency - Indian Rupees n lakhs)

Impairment of finuncial asyets
The Company assesses on i forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) assocanted with 1ts debt instraments camied at amortised cost and FVOCH,
loans and advances and on exposure arisng from Joan i The Company nizes & doss all for such losses at cach reporting date

The measurement of ECL reflocts

* An unbiased and probabilsty-weighted that 15 d | by evaluating a range of passibls
* The ime value n{ money,
*R ble und ble infi jon that is avinlable withost undue cost or effort ot the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts

of fiuture eoanomic ocmdllmns

The method and signifi dg used wiile computing the exy | credit losses and infi about the exp wt default, probability of default and
loss given default have been se1 out in note 34B {Risk Management),

Weite-nff policy

The Company writes oft financial nssets, m whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has luded there is no bl
expectaton of recovery

Finuncial fabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

Finnncial habilities are classified at amortised cost, except foe financial hisbilitses ot fair value through prafit or loss. This classification is applied 1o derivatiy
and finanzinl Habilities held for trading and otber fi 1al liabilties dessgnated as such at initinl recognition

Gauns or losses on fi | liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income (ihe amount of

change in the far value of the financial liabeity that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that 1s not
ibusable 10 changes in market cond: that give rise 1o market risk) and partally profit or loss (1he remaning amount of change in the far vadue of the
liability)

lmmnalﬂnmlmlh&x
¥ | lisbilities are d ised when they are extmpuished 1 e when the obi pecified in the 15 discharged, lled or expired

Reclassification of fi P
The C. lassi fies debt when and only when its | model for aging those assets changes. The reclassification Llakes place from the

| ' 4

start of the first reporting penod following the change Such changes are expocted to be very infrequent.

1 o

After insial recognition, equity instruments and financial liabilities are not

Devivatives
Derivatives are intially recognised at fair value on the dage on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fuir vahue,

Embedded devivatives

The embedded denvatives are fremed as separste derivatives when:

* their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract;
* o separate mstrumsent with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative,

An embedded denvative is a comp of o hybnd bined) mstrument thu alo mclodcs i non- denvative host contract, with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way smalar lo u dak e An embedded denvative causes some or all of the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the 10 be modified 18 10 an index of prices or rates or other variable. Reassessment only occurs if there 1s either
i change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the euh flows that would otherwise be required or & reclassfication of a financial asset oul of
the fair value theough peofit or loss

These embedd«! denivatives are separately accounted for s fair value, with changes in fuir value recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the

Company 1o d the hybnid at fiaer value through profit oe Joss
Certan market linked non-convertible debmluru (MLDs) issued by the Company bave resurns linked 10 non- interest related benchmarks. Embedded derivative
" of such deb are d for at fuir value and host contract The Company hedges the risk of variable payout by takng positions

in futures & options of Nifly 50 Index Funhw the fair valuation of the MLDs for initial recognition of embedded derivatives and barrowings components ns a
the date of issue s done considening adjusiment 10 the put/call contracts of Nifty 50 Index, thereby amiving ot cost of borrowings. Any gainloss on these hedge
positians ure netted against with interest expenses on MLD aned resultant net boss/gaim is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss afier comsidering the mark to
market p af e options at he bal shoet date.

Debt securities und other boerowed fundy
After mitial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are sub ly d ot ised cost. A ised cost is calculated by taking into

nny org on issue furds, and transaction costs that u; an m(cgrd part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

&
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Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initally recognesed in the fi | at fair value, being the premum received, Subse 0 inatial I the
Company’s Lability under cach gunrantoe 15 measured ot the higher of the t intiadly recogaised less lative amortisation recognised in the statement
of prafit and loss

Thwe iam 18 1 d in the of profit and loss on n strmght-line basis over the life of the gunranice.

Fair value mensurement

The Compar fi | such ay and derivatives nt fiir values at each Balance Shoet date

Fair value 1s the pnee that would be received 1o sell an asset or pmd to transfer a liability in an orderly b market particip at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the p iption that the 1 1on 10 sell the asset or transfer the liablity wkes place either:

) In the principal market for the asset oc fiability, or

b) In the ubsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset o lability. The pancipal or the most advantag market must be

scessible by the Company

The fair valuo of an asset or a liabilay » d using the W that market p pants would use when prcing the asses or lability, assuming that
market particip atin thesr ic best mterest

A fuir value of a non-fi | asset takes mto a market pasticipant”s ability to g ic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by sellng it to nnolher market participant that would use the au:t an st highest and best use

The Company uses val ques thit are appropriate in the o and for which sufficient data are avalable to Eair vakue, maximising
the use of relevant observable inpats 2nd minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All ssets and labilities (for which far valoe i3 d or desclosed in the £ | 1 are categorised within the fiair value hicrarchy, descnbed as

follows, based on the lowest level input that i significant 1o the fair value measuroment as & whole:

Lovel | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices i active markets foe identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 < Valuanan techneques for which the lowest level input that s significant 10 the fair value measurement 18 directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuntion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 10 the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For sasets and Lisbilities that are recognised in the financial on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
leveds in the h hy by re % caleg (based oa the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
cach repoeting period.

The M d the pabicies and procedures for both g fair value such os & ive instruments and unquoted financial
mmmurod at far valwe. and fot nos-recumng measurement, such nnnux held for disposal in & imied opersti

At cach reporting date, g dyses the i the values of assess and liabilities which are required to be d or d us per the
Campany s sccounting policses. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inpats applsed in the latest valuation by agreeing the infc m the

valuation computation ta contracts aad other relevant documents

Cush and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equavalents comprise cash ot bank and on hand, short-teem deposits and highly biquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less, whach are readily convertible in cash andl subypect to insignificant nsk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within bocrowings in current liabilities
m the balance sheet

Barrowing Costs
Borrowirg costs include mterest expense calculated wsing the effective interest mﬂhod Baorrowing costs net of any i : from the temporary
investment of relabed bosrowings thit are minbutable 1o the acq or prod; of a qualifying asset are capatalized as part of cost of such

asset 1l such time the asset 15 ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying nsset s an asset that necessanly requires a substantial period of time 1o get ready
for e intenided we of sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized i profit or loss in the peniod in which they are incurred,

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefits m the form of Provident Fund are a defined buti ' and the butions are charged to the stal of profit and loss of the
yeas when the contribution 1o the fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratusty linbility is a defined benefit obligation and 15 provided for on the basis of an actunrial valuation camod out by an independent actuary using Projected
Unat Credit Method made at the end of the financaal year. The Company makes bution 10 a sch i ‘byan Company ap | by
the | Regulatory snd Develoy Authonty of India (IRDAI) 10 discharge the gratuity hability 1o the employees The Company I ils g

Tiabahity basexd on an actuaniul valuation made by an ndependent actuary as at the year end. Provissons made for the funded amount are expemed in IM
statement ol peofit ard loss

Remeasurement gains and losses ansng from expenence adjustments and changes in i P are recognized directly in the other comprehensive
mcome in the period in which they occur. They are included in d eamings m the st t of changes in equity and in the bal sheet R

are not reclassified 10 the statement of profit asd loss in the subsequent periods

Laong term compemml abyences

The Company’s labilities towards | uls | e d on the buu of valuations as at the balance sheet date, carried out by an
mdependml actuary usng Pmmlod Umt Credit Method Mluuml gains and losses comy adju and the effects of changes in actuarial
and are distely in the of profit and loss. The Comny presents the pravision for compensated absences uider

prov isions in the balance sheet
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Z.Lp  Income tax

2lq

2.0

21x

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable mcome based in sccordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assees and liabiltties attributable 1o temporary differetces and to unused tax losses

Current tax

The current income tax change 15 calculated based on the tax laws d or sul ively d at the end of the reporting period. M dically
evakuntes positions taken in tax retums with respect 1o n which apphicable tax regulation 1s subject 1o interpretation. It tﬂabluhet pmvmom wheu
appropaate based on amounts expected 10 be pmd 10 the tax autharities

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recognised on differences between the canving amounts of assets and liabiliies in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the
competation of taxable profic

1. bl

Deferred tax lialulities are g Iy recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are g y recagnased for all ded
differences to the extent lhu itis wol»ble that taxable prafits wall be available against whach those deductible 1cmpomy differences can be utilised, Sueh nnm
and leabilities aro not wised it the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in & transacuon that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets is reviewasd at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable tlsa sufficient taxable
profiss will be available to allow all or part of the asset 10 be recavered.

Deferred tix assets and habilities are measured ol the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period in which the liabslity is setthed oc the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been | or substantively d by the Bal Sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets

flects the tax G that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, ut the repartmg date, 10 recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and lisbilitien

Deferred tax assets and habilies are offset &bm there is a legally enforoeable right 1o set off current tax assets agninst current tax habilibes, and when they
relate 10 income taxes levsed by the same hority, and the Company intends 10 settle its current tax assets and lisbilities on a net basis

Croody and services tux paid on vequisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and nssets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except:

1 When the tax meurred on o purchise of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid 15 recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset ar as part of the expense item, as applicable.

11. When receivables and paynbles are stated with the amount of tax mcluded

The net of tax ble from, or payable to, the » s included as pant of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Y

Provisions. contingent liabilities nnd contingent assets

A provison is recognized when an emterprise has a presont obligation a8 a result of past event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired 1o
settle the obligation, in respect of which a relinble estimate can be made Provissons are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at & pretax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the labilsty. These are reviewed at esch balance sheet dute and
adjusted 10 reflect the current best estimates

A contingent liability 15 a posssble obligatson that areses from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or ran-occurence of one ar more

uncertain future events beyood the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized b it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o settle the obligation. A contingent lnbility also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured relinbly The Company does not recognize a gent liabality but discloses its exi in the financial

Contingent nasets are nevther ¢ i nor disclased in the Fi | St

Earnings per shure

Base eamings per shire are calculated by duwiding the net profit o loss for the penod attributable to equaty shareholders by the weighted averag ber of

equity shares oulstanding duning the period

For the purpose of calculating diluted earmsngs per share, the net profit or loss for the penod atinbutable to equity shareholders and the werghted averag
ber of shares deng during the peniod are adpusted for the effects of all dilutive posential equity shares.

Employee stock option scheme (ESOP)

Equity-sestled share-bmsed payments 1o employoes and others providing similar servioes that are granted by the ul parent Company are d by
reference o the fair value of the equity nstruments it the grant date. The fair value determined &t the ;nnc date of the equsty- umled share-based paymwents is
expensed over the vesting peniod, based on the Company’s estimate of equity snstruments that wall y vest, with a corresy 8 i equity.

At the end of each reporting period, um Company revises its esti of the number of equity mstruments expected 1o vest. The impact of the revision of the

onnal if any, is recognisedd in profit or loss such t.hm the cumulative expense reflects the revised esti with a ponding adj 1o the

‘Employee Stock Options reserve’ In cases where the share d vest in 3 aver the vesting period, the Company treats cach instalmernts a4 a

P grant, b cach | has @ vestmg peme and Mnoe the fuir value of each instalment differs. In situstion where the stock option expires
ised, the related bal ding 1o the credat of the Employee Stock Options O ding Account is ferred within equity.
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(Currency . Iecion Rupees in lakhs)
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22m

22b
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Significant g jud t it and !

The prep of the Company's fi | requuu 10 mlke, dg! and P that affect the reported amounts of’

revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, the g the discl of conti liabil U inty about these assumptons and

estimites could result in outcomes that require a mmrwl adjustment 1o the carying amount of meuot abilities affected m fumn: periods. The uumues and

nsocmcd assumpions are based oo histoncal experience and various other factors that are believed to be ble under the i isting when the
waere prepared, The and undestys ptiops are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to g esti il gnised

an the year in which the estimites are revised and in uny ﬂlm ycl affected

Judgments
In the process of applyng the Company's ing polici 2 has made the following judgr and , whech have
vificant effoct on the wised n the fi |

* Fuir value fi il iy

Fuir value 15 the prce that wwld be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lisbility n an orderdy ion b market partica ot the
messurement date When the faie values of financial assets and financiol liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoded prices in
active markets, their fair value is d using appropn Juntion techniques. The inputs for these valustions are taken from observable sources where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishang fuir values. Judg inctude considerations of various inpets including

liqquiddity risk, credit nsk, volanlity ete. Changes in assumptions/judgments sbout these factars could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For
flrther detanls about determination of fiur value refer note 33A.

* Tmpseiesvent of financiol asvets using the expected credit loss method

The Impairme promwm for I'mancul assels are bused on assumptions about nisk of default, expected loss rates and boss given defilts. The Company uses
in making these P and selecting the mputs to the impaimment caleulation, based on the Company's history, existing market conditions us

well as forward Iwkmg estumates of the end o(uth reporting penod  For further details about ptions used in calculating expected credit losses and the

sensitivity of assumptions refer note 338

* Business model assessment
Classifi and meas, of financinl assets d Is on the results of the Solely for payment orpnnapal and interest (SPPI) Ieu and mc business modcl
test The Comy d the husi modclunkvellhnlummhw(' pary's of fi mltun ed 10 ap
business objective This ludes judgr used by the Company in dmnmnmg the business model & g how lho perfk of the assets is
evilumed and their perfi d, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these ace _‘mc P itors financiol
assets that are derecognised paor 1o their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the are i with the objective of the
business for whech the ssset was beld
* Income fuxes
Significant judgments are mvolved in estimatng budgeted peofits for the purpose of paying ad: tax, & @ the provision for income taxes, including
amannt expected 10 be paldirecovered for uncertain tax positions. For further detasls refer note 19
* Provisions and conting
Provisions and m are recognized when they become probable and when there wall be a future outflow of funds resulting from past op or
events and the outflow of resources can be reliably estimated The tming of recognition and quantificatson of the provi and luabibity requires the appl
of judg 0 g facts and which are subject to change

* Employee stock option scheme (ESOP)
The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with emplmcs uuns Black-Scholes Model 1o determine the fair value of the liability incurred on
the grant date. Estimating, fair value for share-based pay q i of the most appropriate valustion model, vd\och 15 dcpeodem
on the terms 2 condutions of the grant This esti also requires d ination of the most appeopriate inputs to the valuation model i i the exp

life of the share option, volatility and dividend yweld and making assumptions about them
Assumptions and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the fusuro and other key sources of estimating ununain!y at the repoeting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carmying amoums of assets -ml liabilsties within the next fi I year, are described below. The Company based its unummlonl and
an | lable wisen fi are prepared  Exssting ci and i lboulﬁnuru' log

change due lo market changes or circumsaances ansing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the ] whm d\cy

occur,

« Redii and ather entplovee benefits

The cost of the gratuity and Jorg-term employee benefits and the present value of its obigations are d inod using il val An actuarial valuatson

mvolves making vanous sssumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future These include the determination of the future salary increases,

attrition rate, morality rates wnd discount rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term anture, the obligation s highly sensitive 1o
hanges i these puioes. All ions are reviewsd at each reporting date.

L

Futire salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India The attrition rate represents the Company’s d expx of employee
umover. The mortulity rate 15 based on publicly available momality tables for India. Those moetality tables tend 1o change only a mterval in response 10
demographic changes Duscount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date wiih  term thint matches that of the
liaknlties

Further desails aboun gratuity and long serm employee benefits obligatsons are provided in note 31

* Effective interest rate
The effective interest rate is the rate that d d future cash pay or recelp lmowh lhc pected life of the fi ] asset or fi | lisbility
1o the gross carrying of afi il (Le ais ised cost before any impai } or to the ised cost of a fi 1 lability, Thas

estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and Info-c;eln of the mstruments ard other fee incomelexpense that
are integral parts of the instrument
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Recent accounting pronoancements

Mimstry of Corporate Aftairs ("MCA™) notifies new dards or d to the "3 Jurds under Companies (Indian A sg Standurds) Rules
a8 soed from time to time On March 31, 2023, MCA ded the Comp (Indinn Ac ing Standards) Amend, Rudes, 2023, as below:
Ind AS 12+ & Taxes - This di has narrowed the scope of the instial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise

1o equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annasl periods beginning on oc afler Apal 1, 2023 The
Company has evaluated the d and there is no impact on its financinl satement

Ind AS 1 - P of T ial S = This dry Juires 1he entities 10 disclose thesr | ing pol rather than their significant

socounting policies. The effective dme for adoption of this amendment is annual periods begmmng ca or after April 1, 2023 The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact of the amendment is nsignificant in the financeal statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policses, Changes in Accoummg Estimates and me 'l‘hu uumdmem has introduced a definition of “accounting estimates’ and
included amendments 10 [nd AS 8 10 help entities distinguish ch from changes in g esti The effective date for
adoption of this amendmont 15 sanuad periods beginning on or after Apnl 1, 2023 Tha Company has evalusted the d and there 15 no impact on its
financial stazements.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars
3, Cash and cash equivalents
a) Cash on hand

b) Balances with Banks
i) in current accounts

Total
Note :
4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
a) Earmarked balance held with bank's
Total

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
80.27 87.31
80.27 8731
2,758.32 3,658.94
2,758.32 3,658.94

*Earmarked balance held with bank includes Cash & Bank Balances maintained on behalf of UNITY Small Finance Bank Ltd




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

5. Investments

Equity Investments in "Subsidiary Company
Equity instruments - Others

(Less): Impairment loss allowance

I Investments at fair value through profit or loss
A, Investment in equity instruments, Unquoted
i) 20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Centrum
wealth Limited
Method of Fair valuations - Discounted Cush flow method

Total

I Tnvestments at Cost
Ao Investment in Subsidiary Company, unquoted
i) 35,95,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Unity
Small Finance Bank Limited#

(A)
B. Investment in Share Warrants
i) 140 Crore share Warrant issued of Rs 0.01 paise each (Previous
year 190 Crore share warrant of RS 0,01 paise each) #f
(B)
1= (A+B)

¥ (During the year company has sold the 50Cr share warrants)

Total Gross Investments (I + 1)

IV (Less) : Impairment loss allowance

Of the Above
a) Investments outside India
b} Investment in India
Total Gross

{Less): Impairment loss allowance

Total Net

6. Other financial assets
Unsecured Considered good at amortised cost
a) Other financial assets

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

36,090.00 36,140.00

11,000.00 -
47,090.00 36,140.00
47,090.00 36,140.00

11,000.00 -

11,000.00 =
35,950.00 35,950.00
35,950.00 35,950.00
140,00 190,00
140.00 190.00
36,090.00 36,140.00
47,090.00 36,140.00
47,090,00 36,140.00
47,090.00 36,140.00
47,090.00 36,140.00
0.04 127 44
0.04 127.44




Centrum Financinl Services Limited
Notes to the fimascial statementy ns ot und for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Curreacy : Indien Rupees in likds)

Particulars As sl Asar
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
7. Other men fsancinl ssets
U d Considered good at ive] cost
n)  Prepald expetises 1989 -
B)  Advance for espenses RT% -
¢ Hal with seatutory autheeiti s 041
3258 0.41
Lons: bonpatirmsgrt allowance s 5
Total Jrsy T
#. Trade payubles
8} Micro and sl erserpeises (Refer note below) - -
b) D fo relatod panies (Refer nole - 39) - 972
¢ Due o others 29,08 54.69
Teotal 2945 41
Nots:
The amounts dee 10 Micro 204 Small Enterprises 25 defined ba the Micto, Small ssd Medium [ Devele Act, 2008, has

been determined ¥ o extent wech parties have been identificd on the basss of' infarmation avallable wi the Cumpuy For diselogare
pertaining 5 Miceo and Seall Entorprises refer note No,29

As ut March 31, 2023 Lass than |

year 140 3 yoars More than 3 years Tutad
Due to .
1) 1o Micro aad small enteeprises . . .
1] 1o Others .
) Rohied pesties < = -
b Others 29.08 . 2905
1 Dispated does 10 - .
iv Disputed does (Otters) - -
L) 283 = . s
As at March 31, 2022 I“::::" ! 160 years More than 3 years Total
Due to .
1) 10 Micro and smull eocerpeises - - .
Wilo Oteers .
3] Related parties 92 . 72
b) Others M - S8
il Disputed dues - - -
iv Disputed dues (Others) - o -
Tetal &t - - 441
Ty
Particulars As at Assl
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
9. Debt securities
9.0 Atamortised cost
A Seeured
#) Secured Non C ibke Db - privately plisced 3 :
A F .
B, Unsecured
a) O bardy Comvertible Deby « privately placed 1.509.14 1,509.14
m 1.509.14 150904
Total (A v 1) |ém.u m
OF the Abuve
i} Debt secunities in Indle 1,509.14 150904
H) Debt securities outside Jadia $ >
Total I&.I: 1,509.14
92 Termsof R of Cs Isory Convertible I (€CCny
0l 'l'kabow CCDfun wneated unkistod ensccured debentures carmying |14 coupon rale to be paid ansually over the tenre of $
years.
iy Coaversiom Event:
The carlier of;
) Expiry of the tesor (i.e. 14th Jun 2023) of Compubsorily C ile Debs 3
B) At the eption of the holder of the Comy ily C ibde Deb by iesaing 2 notkce of T(seven) workisg days o the
Company.
8] Terms of Repayment
Rate of As at Axat
Repayment Detuil
= licres _ March3L 2023 March.20
Maore thes 12 monthe 12 . 150914
Upso 12 months 1,509.14 -
1,509.14 1,509.14

w / M Cnm “-wmq,,\‘
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

10.

12.

Deposits - At amortised cost
From Others:
Intercorporate deposits (unsecured)it

#  (Tenor: 360days @ 13% )
Other financial liabilities

a) Other financial liabilities *
Total

~ Other Financial Liabilitics includes bank balances
maintained on behalf of Unity Small finance Bank Limited

Other non-financial liabilities

a) Statutory dues payable

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

15,975.00 4,869.00
15,975.00 4,869.00
2,758.32 3.786.38

2,758.32 3,786.38

31.12 26.39

31.12 26.39




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statoments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Equity share capital

) Share capital authorised, Issued, subscribed and paid up

Particula As at March 31, 2023 As uf Mareh 31,2022
gy No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/cach 15,00,00,000 15.000.00 15.00,00,000 15,000.00
IS££0|0.0 l.ﬂm 1 00,000 15,000.00
Issued, Subseribed & paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/each 9,89,56,942 9.895.69 9,89,56,942 9,895.69
9.89.56942 9.895,60 9,§9,56,942 9,805.69
b) Reconciliations of the number of equity shares and share capital :
Particalsrs As at Mareh 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
i No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Issued, Subscribed & paid up:
On ling at the beginning of the year 9.,589,56,942 9.895.69 9.89,56.942 9,595.69
Add: Shares issued during the year . - . .
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,89,56,942 9.895.69 9,89,56,942 9,895.69

<) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has ssued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vole per share, Any
dividend propased by the Board of Dircctors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ing annunl g | ing. The Company has not
declared/proposed any dividend in the current year and previous year,

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the bolders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

As per record of the Company, including its register of sharchaldenmembers and other declaration received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

d) Shurcholder holding morce than 5% of cquity shares us at the end of the year :

)

As at March 31,2023 As ut March 31,2022
Name of Sharcholders
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Centrum Capital Limited, 9,89,56,942 100,002 9.89,56,942 100.00%4

Holling Company*

*During the Previous year Centrum Retail Serviees Limited ferred Sharchokling in the Compuny to Centrum Capital Limited on August 23, 2021

Detils of shares held by Promoters

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year (Equity Shares in nos, of Rs. 100 each)

As at 31st March 2023
Promoters name No of Shares | % holding of | % Change during

equity shares
Fully paid Equity share
Centrum Capital Limited 9,89.56,942 10025 0%

As at 31st March 2022

Promoters name No of Shares | % holding of | % Change during
equity shares the year

Fully puid Equity share

Centrum Capital Limited 9.89,56.942 100% 100%

Centrum Retail Services Limited 0.00% -100.00%




Centrum Fionnckal Serviees Limited
Nates 00 the financial statestents s o€ med for the yonr ended March 11, 2023

(Cummcy 1 todian Repoos b lakti)

Purticudurs At Arat
March 21,2033 Marveh 31, 2002
e Orher equiny
A} Seowritios peestivn 1K619.96 1643096
¥ Sanhary reerve Mmw sev
¢) Employee shoek options - -
d) Retanrod cantings (T4.06) pLE 2}
¢ hinpairssers reserve - .
N Capital cooteibessan (34,00 4.0
W) Dher compecheniive incosie . -
Totsl 19.761.89 1980

AL Nature and purpase of reserves

2. Securities premibsm reserve
Securithes premium reserve bs used 0 recond the promiam o0 isse of sk, The soserve v ho 1odised oy fir Denited porposes sidh as e
of Sorrea sharey {! with the provi ol the Companies Ast, 2011,

B Ststetory reverve
Reverve areated imder 45-X01 1} i The Resorve Bank of [nde Act, 1934 5 samm net ke than ety per cont of it net prodit overy yonr a5 disclosed
i1 800 prollt wead hoes wocund 1nd belive a2y Gvideed o declaral

¢ Emplayen sinek sptions
The shive opthars cunitanding sccount i ted 8 recogaiee 1he grant dng fair vabiz of aptions sused 10 cmployees ander Lmployes sk opdon
s,

o, Retalned Earslngs
Hetmnod camings conmprses of the Company’s undutribuned earmings sfter taves

© Impalrmeat reserve
lirgy Teverve cony of e woem providong as per [poorse R Asset Chusification snd Provisloniny nocess (IRACT naomi) s
corpared 1o the provisiong as per (he ECL siodal sdopied by the Canpany,

1, Capleal contribugon
Capital contribetion repeovenas 1o indinect equery coniribatios by the Perest.

I Moversent in Other eqsity Asal As
Mareh 31,2023 Muarch 31, 022
a) Securities premam
Opening batarce 18639.9% 1443096
A - Premiun Recelved o wse of svurition - -
Clesiag Badance L0 RLUALANY 1843096
b} Statatory reverse
Opering wbwice LR M2 %
Add 1 Trosfer from retainal coermps - B
Closing Balaace (] e $02.9%

€ Employee sock aptham
Opesing balance
At Adsitions dunng the year

Arem
1i5a

[N OO

Lass - Tenmisation of Services (54799
Clinlg Balioee 19 -
) Retalood Earniegs
Openiiag balarce 25.54 {180y
Adkd: Profit S 1 yeur (100.20) (AT.08)
Ak Other comperhonsive incerme . (220
Trasalatrad froen anpoirmest reserve®® . IM&‘_
Arcunt avallabile fac appropristios {T446) M
A
Trannsfer b0 imipwicrment reserve - 212
Clodug Balaace ) (Tase) ]
o) Impsirsent reserve
Opaming dalance - LA
Add : Yramfer thom resaied eamings . mal
Lews : Transher 3 Retalned Eamisg - (IR
Cloaleg Balance * - .
N Copltsd contrdullen
Opening hafence VM0 LS
A AdBGon Auaring e year - 488
Claning Balesce ) 4,60 80
(atbrehilie) 19,762.89 [IETENTN

*“Pavearrt 1o the menceasdsm of usdesytsedizy aiterad inbo wih Comnen Crpinl Linkad ('COL” ox fae holdng somrgany’), the nldng

mmmwummﬁonnwmwyhh“mWMlmthmm.Iwngmmm.ﬂuth\”mll-

19 wame wan rowted theough Profit s Loss Stesanient, bowever ws v led AS it is comiderad a5 part of Capital Contrbgtion

**The Comparty has dscontinued kepalrment reserve ereated in carfier period in serrm of Circular isswod by RIM duted 15 March,

2020 sownrds Boans which were then existing. which sisce have baen sokd 10 third pertios without recoerse nd Bence consed 1 exis 24

ouMua)l.:(ul.Thwn'-yhnmﬂMfmlﬂmwn(uhhuknmlmln“mnlmly

comparyy has rocarvad 1he permession from RBI vide betier daved 21 July 22, In the opision of such di

dwithdrawal from impainners reserve, fie which appeoval of RAI hes alss boen srught, is appeopeiate in as msch as the 10an acooists

agnlast which inpainsent reverve was created have cennod 10 exint s oo March 31, 2021, The Statutoey Andtors have rebiod o the

Inanagement represersation in tis regand,

. MulhﬂmddpumﬁllﬂnhSl.MLMlumunmmdlyl!n&n‘nqmn-«-dn\mn&mlHl—m!hnl
Limited {"USETS), o regived by the WA | boense snmued on Ohtuber 12, 2021,

As e the dlate of waradiy, the Company Reld INR | 408.62 Lakbs in [mpaliment reserve as roquived by RE1 sotifisstion RO1201%9.20017%0
DOR INSFCLOC.PD.No, 10922, 10, 1067201920 dated March 13, 2020, As oo March 57, 2022, 1he Corspany does oct Bobd any loewas sl
wdvance,

The Cormpany has grouped % under setsined eamings fir finsacial your eaded March 31, 2002 The Mussgeatont has iho seght mefcsso of
fhe samse from RET vide 3 cossirmnicntion dhond March 30, 2022 Thin aimoset shadl nat ¢ avallable fie ppeopeintion pendisg malification by
il
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Notes (o the financial sttements as at and for the yenr ended March 31, 2023

tCurreney  Indian Rupees in fakhss

IS,

16,

17

181

Other income

) Uther mcomes

i Other meame meludes Frofin on the Sale of Share Warrants

Finanee costs

Purtenlirs

On Fingncial Habilities mewsured atamortised cost

a1 Ingerest on Debt mstruments
by Interest on Inter corporite Depasits

<) Interest - Others

Employvee henelits expenses

W Sataoes, alloswanees and bonus

by Comribution o provident fTund & other funds

Other expenses

Al Auditors fees and expenses (Refer noe 181 below)

¢ Iirectors siing lees
Iy Fees and subserniption
1 Insurmee chirges

A begal and professiomal fees

1 OIFee expenses

b Rates. duties snd tses
51 Travelling expenses

ul Other Expenditure

Auditors Fees & Expenses

\s Auditor
Statutors Audit Fees
Otbier Certilication fees

*Eegul & professional Fees ineludes other certifications lees

Total

Total

Total

Fotul

Total

For the
Peviod ended

For the
Aear ended

Mireh 31,2023 March 31,2022
77914 .
779.14 -
15091 6243
HHe, 29 24812

(K18} :
N12.24 31055
S0
[AR11]
X.50
T 0
Q48 NS5
(IR 4
LIS .
Sods 1 un
023
O g
007
243 338
58.54 22.38
T 750
| nl) -
§.00 7.50




Contrum Financinl Services Limited
Notes 10 the financinl stutements as at and for the yeur ended March 31, 2023

(Cumensy « Tndian Repecs in bakh)

19, Disclosure puesusst (o Tnd AS 12 "Income Tases™

0.0 Majer of tax Ni 8 Year Ended Mareh 31,
Particslars 2013

L Inceme Tax Expesse charged to Statement of Profit and Lass:
() Cumrent income tax:

Cyrront incems 5ax expense : .

(1) Defersed 1ax:

Tax expense o origimation and roversal of tomporary Efesences . 407,33
Incomse tax expense reported im Profit or Loss (i + §) a 033
11 Income Tax Expense charged 10 Other Comprehensive Incame 1
(1) Income tax expense £ {gain) relatesg 1o #ems that will not bo reckassified 10 profit or loss - {(5.01)
Tncome tax expense reported in the OCT (i + &) - {500,
192 Reconcilintion of tax expense and the ing profit - (Om combined profits)

The Comparny has evercised the option permitted ueder section £1SBAA of the lncose Tax Act, 1961 ws istroduced by the Taxabion Laws (Amendment) Ordinance,
201% in March 2020. Accandingly, the Compasy had recogised md rememured Provision for Income Tax sd Deferrad Tax besed cn the rate preseribed in (he sabd
wetion

A reconzilistion of income 1ax 10 the amount computed by apph ing statilory kscome 1ax rale 10 the income beforo Laves is summsanised below

Year Ended March 31,

Partsculars 2003 022
(3)  Profit before lax (100,20) 32026
(®)  Corporale lax ralo s per lncome tax Act, 1961 25 168% 25 168%
(€} Tix o8 Acoourting peofit (c) = (a) * (b) . ol
(d)  Tax imeast chic 1o

(1) Tax expense of carber voars 5 -

(] Disallowenees on scccunt of permancn dhifferonce v

s (Benelitl Expense due 10 chamae in 1% rates on the opening baning differences - -

iy Other e - 32702

Total effect of tax adjustasents Ki) to Giv)| - n10

(€} Tax expense recognised durimg the year (e)=(c)+(d) - 407,62
10 Effective tas rate (N=(eMn) 0.00% 127.28%

* Pont the BTA, theve being no virtwal i d by douce thrt theve shall be lunire uublc prolits aprimt wheh the nrsvborbad lossos / socumulnted losses would bo

utifised, the deformod e mesets ax sppenring e he | mm have hen revered resulling in begh effective iy rate for the yene endod March 31, 2022

During the yeor, e company bas made a peolit on {he salo of share wierams of R, 7.5 crores: The cospeesy has not passed aimy provissoe foe sscome L (e lability, if sy of 189 eroces)
daring the yoar as the company is of the view that expenses for the current year, bought foewand busimess losses or boughk forwand imabsorbed deprocistion can bs walised against sech profi
oot spde of share warrpnis,

193 Movoment in Deferved Tases

19540 M in deferved tas balances for the year ended March 31,2023
Particulars Asal March 31, Recognised i profic Recognised 10 OCI Tevasferred wnder As ot March 31,2023
22 of ks BTA Recopsnad in
Profit or Loss
Deferced tax sssel/ (linbilities)
i1 Deprecintion oo peoperty, gt med equipeseat . . . < o
dil Loase lishilines - A ' - o
Toal - 2 . ‘- o
Movement in deferved tax balances for the year ended March 31,2022
Tramsferred under
Particulurs 4 ":;:‘h i “m Recognised in OCI BTA Recogninedin  As at March 31, 2022
PO, Profit oc Loss
Deferved tax nulf (liskilitics)
i D o plat and (23K 04) 2504 - (27093) -
i) Lease lissihives non 007 7 S .
i) EIR wespoct of financial sssess 6916 169,16} . . .
W) EIR bespet of finangial lishilitics (22212) 2212 - . C
v)  Unrealised g on denvathes (A8 54) 356,44 B . -
vi)  Goodwdll RS L {3344) . . .
i) lmpainnent loss oo investingees (84.94) LIRS - . -
vl Expectod Crodit loss on doans aed other nssels U712 (4712 . v .
) Provisen for emphoves bénsliss 2078 (2078 . + ~
x)  Disallowance nsder Section ws 40a(ia) - . . - v
Ml DTA oo business ks 4104 (6K164) . -
sit) Others 10.23 (1023) . 027
Teant LM (13865) - 22666} :
1958 Amounts recegnised in respect of carrent tas / deferred tax divectly i equity:
Particulars Asat Axat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amsovats recopnised e respect of eureent tax  deferred 1oy diroetly = cauity . .

194 Taxlowes

Ui tax losses for wiieht no deforred tax ssset has been recognised (2.562.06) {35083




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financinl stntements ns at nnd for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Curvoney : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

20 Discontinued Profit nnd Loss Statement
Centrum Finnneial Services Limited (“"CFSL™) his transferred its business to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (“USFB") as & gomg
concern by way of slump sale. Accordingly, CFSL has discontinued its NBFC business with effeet from November 1, 2021 To that
extent, it has made the disclosure to the stock exchange.
Reserve Bank of Indin ("RBI™) vide its letter duted October 12, 2021 hus issued banking licence to USFB to carry on the business of’
small finance bank. The letter issued along with the licence specifies certain conditions, wherein it is specified that CFSL has to
register itself as Core Investment Company (CIC) with RBI.
In compliance of the same, CFSL, vide its letters dated November 10, 2021 and January 13, 2022 has applied for conversion of'
CFSL, registered as a Systemically Important- Noa Deposit Accepting- Non Banking Financial Company - Investment and Credit
Company, mto n Core Investment Company.
(& puent 1o the request for conversion, RBI has cancelled the eardier COR & his issued 0 new COR dated 9th September 2022
permitting the company to carry on the business Non-Deposit taking systematically Important Core Investment Company(C1C ND-S1)

(Amount)
Faor the year
i I’:::::;:r;:;nd Sline
L March 31, 2022
Revenne from operations
Interest mcome - 6,924.01
Rental mcome - 13.00
Fee and comwmssion income - 3425
Net gain on faer vadue change - 15997
Net gain on derecogaiscn of finsecinl ungder | coas
category - 32736
Other opermseg revenue - 5557
Tatal vevenue from operations - THI41Y
Other income - 54.62
Totul income - 7.928.81
| Expenses
Finsesce costs - 533694
Impai on financial & - 2492
Emphoyoe benefits expenses - 1,814 68
Depreciat ) ted lwgai - 8775
Otheer exponses - G035.59
Total expenses - 780989
Profiti{loss) before tx befare exceptonal items from d d =
operations - 58.93
Exceptional items - Gain on BTA (refer note) . 504,26
Profit{loss) beforv tax from discontimied eperntions - 653.18
Tax expense: =1
- Current tax - -
= Deferred e - 40733
« {Excess)'Shont provision of earlier years - -
Tednl tax expense - 40733
Net Profit for the year - 24588
Isems that will not be reclassifled 10 profit oe loss
<R of post-emphy benefit obligmti - <1721
« Income tax relaning 1o these seivs - -
ltems that will be reclassified 10 profit or loss -
Other comprehensive Incomed{loss) for the year - -17.21
Total comprehensive incomse for the year - 228.64
Enrwings per equity share
Face valuo of T10 per shwe
- Basic ()4
- From Ceotinuing Operations - -0.34
- From Discoatmued Operitions - 025
= Diluted (3)*
- From Continuing Operations - -0.34
- From Discontinued Operations - 025
* Noe annushsed
Note : The exceptional item amounting to ¥ 186,92 lakli represents the gain arising on account of slump sale transaction of 2

594.25 lakh(net of deferved tax asset transferred) avl deferred tax expense arising in October 31, 2021 of T 407,33 Jakh which has been added
1o the gain as the corresponding net assets were transferrred under the Business Transfer Agreement.

Net cash Nows atteibutable to the Discontinued Operations nre as foll

For the year
Particulnrs Foriheyesr snded ended 31 March
31 Muarch 2023 2022

Net Cash flows fromYused) in operateg activities - 41,116,150
Net Cash flows fromYused) in mvesting acenaties - (33,909.01)
Net Cash flows fromAused) m finaocing activines - 1,799.44
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash mnd cash equavalent - 9,006 50
Cash and cash equivalents s 2 | Apnl (opesing balmece) - £,205.15
Less - Balance transferred shrough slump sale -

Cash and cash equivalents as at 11 March (closing batance) - 8731




Centrum Fisaaclal Scrvices Limited

Notes to the financlal statements as ut and for the year ended March 3, 2023

(Curreney : Indian Rupees I hikchs)

An analysis of chamges in the gross carrying und the corvesponding ECT, all i relation to all enward kending Iy us follows:
 Particul Stagel Stage2 Stage 3|

Gross carrylog assount as at April 1, 2021 73931.28 8,060.75 1,280,185

Assets originaced* 60,5174%

Net sransder between suges

Transter 1o stage | 4.333.00 (4.333.00)

Tramsfer to stage 2 .

Transfer W stago (73.43) (9.16) 82.59

Assets Ce pised of collectod (ineloding death prech

(cases) (64,597.78) (68.91) (17.18)

A iten-off - {644.17)

Assets tramaferrad through shump sale (74, 110.58) {3.640.65) (701.3%)

Gross enrvying amount as at 31s¢ March, 2022 - - -

* Assols onginated rep the dish made during the yuar.

Reconcilintion of ECL bakance Is given below:

31 March 2022

slisiayd Stage 1 Stage2]  Staged Total
ECL provisien ut the beginning of the year 169,76 4317 T46 A8 959.41
Adil: ECL peovision durieg the yesr 269 23.07) 49.29 28.91
Lews: Write-offs duriny the year (644,15) (644.18)
Lans: Amoums transferred eough slump sale (17245) (20.10) (151.59) (344.14)
ECL prevision at the end of the yenr - - - -




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

21 Earnings per equity share
(Face value of T 10 per share)
Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted

average ber of shares outs

EPS - Continuing nperations

fing during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
i March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Net profit after tax available for equity sharcholders for basic EPS (% in lakh) (100.20) (33291)
Net profit after tax available for equity sharcholders for diluted EPS (2 in lakh) (100.20) (33291)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) 990 990
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 990 990
Basic earnings per share (%) (0.10) (0.34)
Diluted carnings per share (¥) (0.10) (0.34)

EPS - Discontinuing operations

For the year ended |For the year ended
PRI March 31,2023 | Mareh 31,2022
Net profit after tax available for cquity sharcholders for basic EPS (2 in lakh) - 245,85
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for diluted EPS (2 in lakh) - 245.85
Weighted averuge number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) - 089.57
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) - 989.57
Basic earnings per share (%) - 0.25
Diluted earnings per share (%) - 0.25
EPS - Continued and Discontinuing operations
PR For the year ended [For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Net profit after tax available for equity sharcholders for basic EPS (2 in lakh) (100.20) (87.06)
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for diluted EPS (2 in lakh) (100.20) (87.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) 989.57 989,57
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 989.57 989.57
Basic carnings per share (%) {0.10) (0.09)
Diluted carnings per share (%) (0.10) (0.09)
22 Effects of share options on diluted earnings per share
(For the year ended 315t March, 2022)
Purticulars Nos.
Net profit for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 (% in lukh) - Continuing operations (332.91)
Net profit for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 (2 in lakh) - Discontinued operations 245,85
Net profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (2 in Jakh) - Continuing and Discontinued operations
(87.06)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year ended 315t March, 2022 (Nos.) 990
Average fair value of one option during the year ended 2022 () Nil
Weighted nverage number of shares under Employee stock option during the year ended 3 st March,
2022 (Nos.) Nil
Weighted average number of shares under Conversion with respect to Compound Financial Instrument
during the year ended 31st March 2022 -
Exercise price for shares under option during the year ended 31st March, 2022 (2) Nil




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financinl ststements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Computation of Earnings per share - Continuing operations

Particulars

Earnings
(T in lakh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
)

Net profit for the year ended 3151 Masch, 2023

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during year ended 313t March, 2023
Basic eamings per share

Impact of employee stock options

Impact of Compound Financial Instrument

Number of shares usler employee stock options

Number of shares uler conversion

Diluted eamings per share

(100.20)

(100.20)

98,956,942

98,956,942

(0.10)

(0.10)

Particulars

Eamings
(Tin fakh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
)

Net profit for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Weighted average number of shares outstanding duning year ended 315t March, 2022
Basic camings per share

Impact of Compound Financial Instrument

Number of shures uder conversion

(332.91)

(332.91)

98,956,942

98,956,942

(0.34)

(0.34)

Diluted eamings per share
Computation of Earnings per share - Discontinued operations

Particulars

Earnings
(¥ in lakh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
)

Net profit for the year encled 315t March, 2023

Weighted average number of shares owstanding during year ended 315t March, 2023
Basic camings per share

Impact of employee stock options

Impact of Compound Financial Instrument

Number of shares under employee stock options

Number of shares uder conversion

Diluted carnings per share

98,956,942

98,956,942

Particulurs

Earnings
(Tin lukh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
)

Net profit for the year ended 3151 March, 2022

Weighted average number of shares owstanding during year ended 3151 March, 2022
Basic eamings per shure

Impact of employee slock options

[mpact of Compound Financial Instrument

Number of shares under employee stock options

Number of shares under conversion

Diluted eamings per share

24585

245 85

98,956,942

Nil

98,956,942

Computation of Earnings per shure - Continuing & Discontinued operations

Particulars

Earnings
(T in lakh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
)

Net profit for the vear ended 31st Mareh, 2023

Weighted sverage number of shares outstanding during year ended 315t March, 2023
Basic eamings per share

Impact of employee stock options

Impact of Compound Financial Instrment

Number of shares under employee stock options

Number of shares under conversion

Diluted earmings per share

(100.20)

{1X0.20)

98,956,942

98.956,942

(0.10)

(0.10)

Particulars

Earnings
(Tin lakh)

Shares
(Nos.)

Earnings per share
®)

Net profit for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Weighted average number of shares owtstanding during year ended 315t March, 2022
Basic camings per share

Impact of employee stock options

Impact of Compound Financsal Instrument

Number of shares under employee stock options

Number of shares under conversion

Diluted earnings per share

(87.06)

(87.06)

98,956,942

Nil

98,956,942

(0.09)

(0.09)

Note

1. Since the rate of conversion of the compulsorily convertible debentures can be ascertained onl
calculating the diluted eamings per share except for the compound financial instrument which a

version, the same have not been considered while
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Centram Finuneinl Services Limited
Nates 1o the financigl statements for the yeur ended 31 Marceh 2023

Note on Business 'ransfer Agrecment
REAEvide s feter dated 12 Oetober 2021, pranted & teenee 10 Centeum Finangaal Services Lumited, an ussocrne campiny oF the Company 1 establish o
sl finanve bank (S1°13)

One orthe hieensimg conditions was that the Company shull tansien s Business under stump sale betore the date ol COMIRARMEn! of busingss by Unity
Stntll Fonence Bank imted (USER) Therctore, the Company sold 15 business 10 USEF « e n Busmess Transter Agreement (by wiy alshnmp sule)
A dated Otober 26 2021

USEE commenced ns operations on November 1. 2021 Pursint to the BIA, ihe entire business undertakmg of CUSE was transterred 16 USERR vig
slump sale us a gomg coneem, on ssisewhere-ts” busis, ellective from November OF 2021 Tor u to1al considezation of INR. 31 OO Lakh, The Company
had receny e the consideriiion i cash

Acenrdingly the Company s derecopnised the assets and liabiliies arbook valae m s books of accounis pertinming o the NBFC-NDSI undertisking
e excess of considentnon recetyed o er the value of assets and hubilines transternad was recogmised as g on slamp sale and credined wethe ol amd
Loss Accounn Suce the trnster of the underithmg constitutes drscontimud aperations, the Hnaeral sttement for the vear ended wnd oy w11 March
2021 have been druwn m aeeordanee wWith Jasd AS 105 - Non-current Assets Hekd for Sabe and Discontmued Operations. Fherefore, e suime are ot
comparabde with the current veur's linanenl statement The summiary of assets and labilites derecognised puestint 1o the BEA 1 us under

Purticulirs INR in Lakh
Assels

Cashoand cash equivalents 17,108 86
Hank hatances other thin cash and cash eqenvilents above 147245
Dervatve Lanner! Instraments 3804 51
| ey 7811731
Regevables .
Investiments 2,738 44
Onher Hoancul assets | oh 48
Current s ussets (nel) 1.732 37
Properny . plant i equipnwent KA
Tntangible assets under development WG
Intngible assets 141 08
Right ol Use « Premises 203
Guadwill 4981 32
Onher non-tmancril ussers 477 1o
Fotal assets translerred LIS514.42
Linbilities

Denvatve Fimancral Eaibafitees R332 W
Lo pran ables 654 42
Bebt securniies 6537347
Banowings (other than deb seeuriies) 8,820.89
Lease Lamlitiey 24 48
Deterred s labibives (net) 27600
Onther tmmeral habihties 270 %
Provisions 173 04
Other pom-timneral Tabilines 583 4w
Total liabilities transferred N4, 50880
Totl Netassets transferred JLO05.62
Purehase considerntion received RERARI
Ganin on stump sile 594,38
Note on Amalgamation

R vade s fenter dited 12 Oetoher 202 eanted a heense 1o Centrum 1 imnane Services Limited. an associie company e estabhsh a sl fingnee
Btk ENL IR s part o revival/ recanstruction aof Punih and Mahicashins O-operanve Bank Livited (PMC Bank ) One of the Beensmyg conditiony was
it the Compins shall ceuse its | eiding busimess and suerender (1s N3 heense on the dite of commencement OF business by Uity Sl Finisee
1ank Eamied

Parsuant (o e whove, e Caompany transterred its fending busimess o Uity Small Finanee Bank Lamited as o gomg concern by way oL stump sile on |
November 2020 Uniy Small Fiminee Bank Limied has commenced i1s busmess w el | November 2021 Pursuant 1o the aforesuid. the Company has
sdiscontnued ils kending business wath cheet from 1 November 2021 [ e Company has also applied to RO 1o com ersion ol Company, rewsstered s o
Sustemicilly Important-Non Deposit Aceepting-Non Banking Financial Company - Investment and C redit Company. into a Core fnve et Compuny

COnseguent 10 the regquest 1or conversion. RBI bits canceled the varlier COR & has ssued - new COR dated 9th Seprember 2022 permiing the comparny
tocarey on e hustness Now-Deposii tahmge svseematically mportant Core Investment CompanviCIC ND-ST




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
25. Lease liabilities

A)  The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Balance as at beginning - 32.04
Additions - -
Finance cost accrued during the period - 1.68
Deletions - 0.46
Payment of lease liabilities - 9.24
Transfer under slump sale - (24.02)

Balance as at end* - <
*Previous year Company has transferred Assets and Liabilities under BTA to USFB as of Nov 1, 2021 under Slump

Sale

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Less than one year - -
One to five years - -
More than five years - -
Total - -

The amounts considered above are actual cash outflows. The lease liability in the balance sheet is the present value of these
amounts as on the reporting date.

As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Depreciation on Right of use assets - 8.32
Interest expense on lease liability - 1,68
Total cash outflow for leases (rental payments) - (9.24)
Additions/ transfer to Right of use assets - 0.46
Carrying value Right of use assets* - 32.80

*Previous year Company has transferred Assets and Liabilities under BTA to USFB as of Nov 1, 2021

The Company has taken various office premises under lease. Certain agreements provide for cancellation by either
party or certain agreements contains clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating
lease agreements are ranging for a period 12 to 36 months. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

The weighted average incremental discounting rate of 10% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the
balance sheet as at the reporting date .

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the assets are sufficient to
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency © Indian Rupees in lakhs)

20.

27,

28.

29.

30.

Commitments and contingencies

Particulars As at 31 March,
2023 2022
Contingent linbilities
i) Corporate guarantee - -
i Income tax demands on account of dispute 283.77 283.77
i) Intercorporate borrowings written back 161,34 164,34

Future cash outNows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various
forums/autharities. 1t is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flows. if any. in respect ol the above
pending resolution of the respective procecdings. The Company does not expeet any reimbursement in respect ol the above
contingent liabilities. The Company is of the opinion that above demands are not sustainable and expects 1o succeed in its appeals.
The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's
linancial position and resulls of aperations.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision is required for (he
loresecable losses,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
During the year ended March 31, 2023. the Bank is not required to contribute to Corporate Social Responsibility under section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013 (Previous Year : Nil)

Dues to Micro, Small Enterprises
Under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 which came into force from October 2. 2006, certain

disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, There have been no reported cases ol delays
in payments 1o micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments. (Previous Year : Nily

Segment Reporting

Fhe Company's Chief financial officer (CFO) and Executive director have been identified as the Chiel Operating Decision Maker,
examine the Company's performance on an entity fevel. The Company has only one reportable segment i.¢. business of' linancing.
The Company does not have any reportable geographical segment. Thus. the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying value
ol segment assets and segment liabilities. total costs incurred 10 acquire segment assets, total amount of: charge of depreciation
during the period are all reflected in the financial statements. No single customer contributes more than 10% of' the lotal revenue
carned during the year,

Jo\
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cuerency ; Indinn Rupees in lakhs)

L

Employee benefits - Disclosure pursaant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benelits'
A. Defined contribution plans
The Company makes Provident fund contributions which are defined conribution plans for qualifying employees, Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute n specified percentage of the payrotl costs 1o fund the benefits
The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss ds contribution to defined contribution plans which
wre included under contribution o provident and other funds:
For the year ended 31 March,
2023 2022
Provident fund - 71,05
* During the year company has obtained decalaration from emplayee for non deduction of PF.
B, Defined Beaefit Plan
A} The Company bas a funded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, an
ployee who has d five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depersd on the member’s length
of service and salary at retirement age. The fund is ged by an independent | Company. The | Company is respansible foe
the administration of the plan nssets and for defining the in i
The following tables summurise the components of net benefit wiised m the of profit or loss and the funded status and
gnised in the bal sheet for the respective plans:
For the year ended 31 March,
Change in defined benefit olligati 2023 2022
Defined benefit obdigation, beginning of the year - 111,76
Current service cost - 17.42
Past service cost
Interest cost - 428
Remensurements (gains) / losses
Actuarial (gains) / losses
arsing from changes m demographic I - (0.05)
ansing from changes i financial assumptions - 15.74
arsing from changes m experience adjusiments - 108
Transfer infowt) of liability - 3443
Benefits paid from plan assets - (1272)
Less : Balance transferred through slump sale - (171.94)
Defined henefit obligation, end of the year - =
Change in plan nssets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year - 46.01
Interest income - 1.76
Returm on plan assets, {exclsding included m net | expense) - (0.44)
Employer’s contributions - 48 5.
Benefits paid - (12,72)
Less : Balance transferred through slump sale - (83.11)
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year - -
As at March 31, As at March 31,
15} Amsoant recog | in the bal sheet ists of) 2023 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation - 171,94
Fair yalue of plan assets - 83.11
Less : Balance transferred through slump sale - (88.83)
Net linbility - -
For the year ended 31 March,
¢} The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows: 2023 2022
Service Cost
Curvent service cost - 1742
Past service cost = &
Total Service cost () - 17.42
Net interest cost
Interest expense on DHO . 252
Interest expense / (income) on plan assets
Interest exp /(i ) o reimb rights
Interest expense on effect of (asset celling Vonerous lability
Tatal Interest cost (i) - 2.5
Remeasurements of Other Long tenm benefits (iid)
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss Civ) = (FHibin) - 19.94

Since Campany has receved declaration from employee for non d of PF hence gratuity valuation not applicable
For the year ended 31 March,
2023 2022
R recognised in other compeehensive i (ocn
Due to changes in demographic i - (0.05)
Due to changes in financial assumptions - 1574
Due to changes in experience adjustments - 1.08
Retum on plan assets (excl, interest income) - .44
Total in other comprehensive i {0C1) (v) - 17.21

Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss and OCI

(i) =(iv + v) - 37.15




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the fisancinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
d) The principal assunptions used In determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below

With the objective of presenting the plan asscis and plan Habilitics of the defined benefits plans and post retirement naedical benelits at their Cair
value an the balance sheet, nssumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference 10 market conditions at the valuation dale,

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discoumt rate Q.00% 0.43%
Salary escalation rate* N.A. 0.00% p.a. for the pext | years,
6.26% p.a, for the mext | years, starting
from the 2nd year &
5,00 p.a. thereafter, starting from the
Ind year
Expected return on plan sssets 0,000 6.43%
Rate of employee tumaver 0.00% 10,00%%
Mortality rate during employment NA Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006~
08} Ult
Mortality rate after emplayment NA. NA

* takes into account the inflation. senlocity, promotions and other relevant factors

¢) The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
Asat 31 March,  As at 31 March,
2023 2022
n) Insurer managed funds - 1461
b} Caush - =

) Impuct on defised benefit obligntion - Sensitivity Analysis
For the year ended 31 March,

2023 2023 2022 2022
%o Rate Amount % Rate Amount

Increase by 100 basis points
1) Impact of change in discount rate 0.00% - 743% (10.71)
ii}) Impact of change in salary growth rate 0,00% - 7.60% 102
i) Impact of change in employee sitrition rase 0% - 11038 {1.23)

Decrease by 100 basis points
1} Impact of change in discount rate 0.00% - 543% 12,09
15) Impact of change in saliry growth rate 0.00% - 5600 10,30
i) Impact of change in employee astrition rate 0,000 - D000 (1.24)

The above sensitivity analyses ane based on 4 change in an assumption while holding all other nssumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
10 occur, and changes in some of the ptions may be tated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined banefit obligation ta
sigaificant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benelit obligati leulated with the projected unit credic
method at the end of he reporting period) has been applied s when calculsting the defined benefit lisbility recognised in the balance sheet,

The methods and types of sssumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did ot change compared to the prior period,
g} Maturity
The defined benefit abligations shall mature after year end as follows: As at 31 March,  As at 31 March,
Particulars 2023 2022

1} 18t Following Year . 11.63
i) 2nd Following Year . 13.93
it} 3rd Following Year - 2693
) 4 Following Year - 19.86
V) Sth Following Year . 14.28
vi) Sumof Years 6o 10 - 68,96
vii) Sumof Years 11 and above - 131.82

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is § years (previoas year - 8 years),
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32,

Employee Stock Option Plan
Employees' Stock Options Scheme (ESOS)

The nctivity in the Scheme-1, Scheme-11 and Centrum Capital Ltd, Scheme during the previous year ended 31 March 2022 is set

below:
Number of options
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Scheme-l : Face value of Rs, 10 each
Exercise price Rs. 10 each
Options outstanding as at beginning of the year i 3.515.387
Add; Granted
Less: Exercised
Less: Forfeited = (3'5 l5,387)
Less: Lapsed
Option outstanding end of the year . =
Excercisable at the end of the year - -
Scheme-11 : Face value of Rs, 10 each
Exercise price Rs. 10 each
Option outstanding as at beginning of the year 2 1.079.500
Add Granted
Less © Exercised
i.ess: Forfeited " (1,079,500)
Less: Lapsed
Option outstanding as at end of the year < 2
Excrcisable at the end of the year - -
Centrum Capital Ltd. Scheme*
Exercise price Rs. 10 each
Option outstanding as at beginning of the year > 250.000
Add Granted
Less ; Exercised
Less: Forferted
Less: Translerred = (zso‘ow)
Less: Lapsed 2
Option ontstanding as at end of the year . -
Exercisable at the end of the year " »
Other Information regarding employee share based payment plan is as below
Rarticulars For the year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Expense arising from employee share based payment plans - 120.52
Expense aniging from share and stock option Plan - -
Closing balance of liability for cash share appreciation plan - -
Expense revsersal on Forefeiture of ESOP Scheme - (587.39)
Expense arising from increase in fair value of liability for cash share appreciation plan - -
Total carrying amount at the end of the year in Employee stock option under Other Equity - -
Total carrying amount at the end of the year in Capital contribution under Other Equity* 42,70 42.70

During the year company has not introduced any ESOP scheme.

* Employee Stock Options of Centrum Capital Limited (Ulumate Holding Company) are given to employees of Centrum Financial Services

Limited.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency © Indian Rupees in lakhs)
33,  Fair Value Measurement (Continued)
RN Fuir value hicrarchy of financial instruments

This seetion explains the judgements and estimates made in defermining the fir values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fuir value, the Company has elassified its financial instruments into the three levels
preseribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undernenth the table,

Level 12 The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly trded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting peried. The quoted market price used for financial nssets held by the Company is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not fraded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litle as possible on entity-specific estimates. 11 all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: 1 one of more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrurment is included in level 3.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

33.B,1  Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurning fair value measurements as at March 31, 2023 is as follows,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financinl Assets
| Derivative assels - - - -
2 Investments
- Listed equity shares - . - -
- Perpetunl Subordinated Tier 1 bonds - - - -
- Share Warrant . - - -
- Equity Shares - 11,000.00 - 11,000.00
Total - 11,000.00 - 11,0840.00

33.B.2  Financial instruments measured at fair valee - recurring fair value measurements s at March 31, 2022 is as follows.
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Derivative assels - P - -
2 Investments

- Listed equity shares - - - -

- Perpetual Subordinated Trer | bonds - - - =

- Share Wurran - - 190.00 190,00

- Equity Shares . - 35,950.00 35,950,00
Total - - 36.l40& 36,140.00

fag. Be 109383W
203, Genire Faint Bleg,
79, Dn. furdadie Road,

(Jpp. Baatat Nt Cinerma,
Lnosy, el
Neobii- 400012,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency | Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note: Valuation methodologies of fi il instr not red at fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, Pass through certificate, deposits, Trade
receivables, other financials assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities {excluding lease liability) are considered to be approximat:ly equal
to their fair values due to their short term nature.

The fair values of loans, receivables and loans in the nature of debentures are caloulated using a portfolio-based approach, grouping loans as far as
puossible into homogenous groups based on similar characteristics, The fair value 1s then extrapolated 1o the portfolio using discounted cash flow
maxdels that incorporate interest mte estimates considering all significant characteristics of the loans. This fair value is then reduced by impairment
allowance which is already calculated incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defuults to arrive at fair value net of risk.

Debt securities are recorded at fair values by undertaking valuation techniques and thus, the carrying values are approximately equal to the fair
values,

The fair value of the borrowing and lease liability is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Valuation techniques of financial instruments, other than those which are subscquently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at
as under
Fair values of instruments designated under FVTPL are recorded at market valies,
(1) Investment in Equity Shares
[nvestment in unquoted Equity shares is based on valuation report obtained from an external valuer

Off-balance sheet positions

Estimated fair values of ofi-balance sheet positions are based on discounted cash flow models, as explained above, which incorporate the credit
nisk element through the discount factor.
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency © Indian Rupees in lakhs)

35, Capital Management
The peimary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital .quirements from its
regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and bealthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.
The pillars of its policy are ns follows:
a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk,
b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial strength of the balance shects is
preserved.
c) Manage financinl market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings
d) Leverage optimally in order 1o maximise shareholder returng while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.
This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions and interest rates environment
No chinges have been made 1o the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years except those incorporated on account of rege! tory amendments. However,
they are under constant review by the Board
Regulatory capital
As an CIC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum Adjusted Net Worth shall at no point of time be less than 30% of its apgregate risk weighted assets on balance sheet
and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items as on 31 March 23 and as on 31 March 22. The capital management process of the Company ensures to maintain a healthy
ANW at all the times
The Company has complied with the notification RB12019-20¢170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD,No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards™
issued by Reserve Bank of Indin
Please refer note 39.6- "Adjusted Net Worth" additional disclosures related to RBI for the detail of the same
36, Chunges in linbilitics arising from financing nctivities
Changes in liabilitics arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars As at March 31, Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,
2022 (net) value (net) 2023
i) Debt securities 1,509.14 - - - 1,509.14
it) Borrowings other than debt secunities - - - - -
i) Deposits 4.869.00 11,106,00 - - 15,975.00
Total 6.378.14 11,106.00 - - 17,484,114
Changes in liabilitics arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022
Particalars As at March 31, Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,
2021 (net) value (net)* 2022
i) Debt securitics 68,694.68 (1,812.08) - (65,373.46) 1,509.14
1) Borrowings other than debt securities 6,557.99 2,115.31 (8,673.30) 0.00
1i) Deposits - 4,869.00 - - 4,869,00
Total 755"52.67 517224 - (74,046 .77 6l378. 14
*Transterred Liabilities under BTA to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited on November 1 2021
37.  Transferred financial assets
37.1 Transferred financial assets that ave derccognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involyement
The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues 10 have continuing involvement.
38,  Foreign exchange earnings/outflow

Thye foreign exchange earnings and outflow is Rs. Nil during the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil)




Centrurm Financial Seevices Limited
Notes 10 £h¢ finanstal stacavtreras for the yoar ended 31 Mared 2023

(Cursency  Indisn Rigpees wt Likds)

39 Disclosures 10 he made in the Asaual Fieancial Statements
»i
Audditi laf fon o roquired by Reseove Bank of ladia, Master Disection - Core Investment Companics (Reserve Bank) Directisns,
REVDNBR2015-17/3%, Master Directon DNBR. PD, 00305, 14, 1192016- 17, Augast 25, 2016, DOR (NBFCLOC.PD,Na 1092 19, 106/2015. 20
dated March L5, 2020, & DoR (NBFC) (PD) CC, Na, 11700, 10,001/2020-21 duted August 13, 2020,

These diseh have béen prepared based on Ind AS o line with the Reserve Dank of badin sotification dated
Mareh 13,2020,

st As wt March 31, 2023 As 4t March 31, 2922

g Particulars Amunt Asant Asunt

»m. ctsiuedi Astiant ivenlos gi .

Linbificiey,
391 Lo wad sdvances avalled by the CIC Inclusive of

lterent mecrmed thereon it sot akd:
| i8) Deteniies
;oqlu Ahan Gsag wadin (e meaning of palids: i 1 i
deponits *)
i) Dels Seciuritics 150914 1509 14
&) o 1597500 . 4869 06 .

Asets:
392 Breadoup of Loans and Advances includiog Bills
[Becchvables Joeher thiaa thene incued in (4] belw |

b _Ussecrired
393 Break up of Leased Asets and stock an hire asd

) Lease awets inchuding kease serals under
Sundny

[ { N E ] o
1 i o] o ) B
(1) Ssock o hire incliding hire charges snder

4t Reposcssad Jacti
U] Ofher oans comting Lowanis asset
SCS,

£3) Loaist u bove saecte haro bogn C = E
(1) Losns ocher thavs () shove

3.2 Breskeup of 0

Avar Mareh 31, | Asat March 31,
202} 22

Amsunt Amsum
sutstesding | ouistsnding_|

s L L),

P O ' 1Y

3.3 Borvower prosp-wie classfication of assets finssced as s (2) and () abave:

Ar Wl
Secured Tts) eed
0 1
1748413 17484 1 [RECAEN AT
A [
) 1
E TEATTRYN BT TTRY] -




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 10 the financial statoments for the yesr ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in ki)

39.4 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) im sharves and securities (both quoted and unqueted)y:

No Category

As at March 31, 2023

Market value /
Break up or fair
valoe or NAV

Hook value {nes of|
pravisions)

Market valie /
Break up or fair
value oe NAV

As at March 31, 2022

Book vahse (met
of provisions)

1| Relased Party

Subsdiaries

79,303

Companies in the same group

11,000,00

11,000.00

1761795
0

36,140.00

0)

Other re

3.5

39.6

2] Other than related parties

Other information

Particulars

As at March 51,
2022

As at March 31,
2021

() Gross NowPecforming Assets

(a) Refated parties

| (b)_Other than related parties

5) Net Non-Perfonmi ()

I
b) Other than

|G} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Components of ANW and other related information

No. Farticulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

il JANW a5 8 % of Risk Weighted Assets

62 984

82 34%

i unreslized appreciation in the book value of quoted
invest

397

Lozl
iy diminution in the nggregate book vakie of quoted
mn investment

vi) [Leverage Ratio

Q.60

Tnvestment in Other CICs

No. Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at Mareh 31,
2022

«  |contrbetion made by one CIC in another CIC
(i i of CICy

Total amowm representing any direct or mdirect capital

w |indirecs capital contrilution exceeds 108 of Owned
Funds

Nurber of CICs with their sames wheroin the direct or

398

Funds

Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or
indirect capital contribugion s less than 10% of Owned

Of-Balance Sheet Exposure

No. | Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

L__{Of balance sheet expasure

il |Fisancisl Gusrantee as 4 % of 1048l off balance sheet

SXPOsre
iil. | Non-Financial Guarantes as 2% of total off balance

39.9

iv._|OfFhalance sheet exposure 1o overseas subsidiaries

v, _ILeter of Camfort sssued to any subsidiaey

Investments

No. | Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

(1) | Valae of Investments

1) Gross Vi nvestments

(a) In [ndia

47,050 00/

36,140.00|

(b)_Outside Indin

(i) Pravision foe Dep
() In Indsa

(b)) Onntsicle India

(i) Net Value of |

(8) n India

(1) Outside ndia

(2)  |(2) Movenent of provisions held towards
depreciation on levestments

(i} _Opening bal

(ii) Add - Provisions made during the year

(iii) Less - Write-off'/ write-back of excess provisions

ear
(iv) Closing balance
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Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the fimancial statenents as nt and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Currency : Indian Repoes)

0. Related Party Disclosure
As per the requirement of 1nd AS 24, on rolsed party disclosures, the name of the reluted partics with the description of the relationship and
transactions between the reporting enterprise snd les related partics, as identified by the masagensent are as fallows |
.1 List of refated parties
Nature of relationship Nause of the party
HoMing company Centrum Capital Limited
List of Subsidiary/ hobding’ A inte/ subxidi Centrum Capital Limited
of u holding company as per 2(76)(viil) IGNIS Capital Advisors Limited
Unicy Small Finance Bask Limied
Centram Rewil Services Limited
Centrum Wealth Limited
Contrumn bnsurance Brokess Limdied
Centrum nvestment Advisory Limded
Centrum Broking Limited
CCIL Investment Management Limited
Centrum Capital Intermational Limited
CCAL Investment Managers Limised
Centrum Alternatives LLP
Centrum Capital Advisors Limited
Centnam Intiemational Services PTE Limited
ALl A ey A Limtited
Centrum Housing Finance Limited
Key management personael (KMP) Rishad K. Byramjee (Executive Director)
Abhishek Baxi (CFOQ)
Archana Goyal (CS)
0.2 Transactions with Related parties during the year
5 For the year ended 31 March,
No. Nature of Transaction Namie of Party 2023 202
1 Loans given Ceptrum Retuil Services Limited . 1,260.00
Ceoarum Capital Limied ncluding erstwhile-Centrum . 4,300.00
Microcredit Led)
Centram Weanlth Limised . 2500
2 Loan repayment Cenerum Capital LimitediIncluding erstwhile-Centrum - 430000
Microcredit Lid)
Centrum Retail Services Limited - 126000
Centrum Wealth Limited - 312500
3 Loawm taken Centrum Copatal Limitediincluding erawhile-Centrum 16,598.00 4,569.00
Microcredit Lid)
4 Loan repayment Centrum Capital Limited| Including erstwhile-Centrum 5492.00 -
Microeradin Lid)
5 Debenture sold Centrum Credit Opportunitics Trust . 1,528.41
6 Debenture purchased Centrum Credit Opportunities Trust - 1.500.00
7 Convideration recclved for sale of partfolio on Centram Microcredit Limated - 12632
Direct Assignmont
& MLD repaid including scerued interest® Centrum Weakth Limited - 3,143.44

*MLDs were directly purchased from the market by the companics doe 10 the which same is not disclosed by the Company, However, at the time of redemption
smount is repaid to relsed party holding the MLDs as on that dte,

10 Reat income

Ceorum Capisal Limsited 0,98 .

Centram Capital Limsted (Erstwhile-Centrum Microcredit Lud) - 0,08
Centrum Retail Services Limied - 12,98
Cenoum Wealth Limsted - 0.86




20

21

22

26

27

403

Ne.

~

Nature of Transaction

Service fees income
Advisory fees ncome

Interest income

Tnterest expenses

Payment of rent

Electrieiy expenses paid os behnll of the Company

Printing and statlonery, postage and conrier and

telephone expense
Brand fees

Arvangers fees

Reiml of

Commission nnd brokerage expenses

Managerinl remuneration

IT Refund transelerved

Professhonal Fees
Fixed Asset

Receivable

Investiment

Tnvestment Sold

Balamees with Related parties as at year end

Nature of Transnction

Margin balance with broker
Other financial labiliy

Debt Seeurities
Trade pnynble

Deposit Received

Investment

Margin balasce with broker

Name of Party

JBCG Advisory Services Privae Limited
Centrum Capital Limited

Centrum Capital Lamaed

Centrum Retail Services Limied

Club 7 Holidays Private Limited
Centrum Wealth Limited

Centrum Retall Services Limied
Centrum Capital Linited (Erstwhite-Centrum Microcredit Lid)

Centrum Copstal Linited

Centrusn Capatal Limited
Centrum Retal Services Limited

Centrum Retasl Services Limited

Centrum Retasl Services Limited

Centrwm Capital Lisnited
Centrum Wealth Limsted
Centram Wealth Lamaded
Centrum Broking Limited

Mr. Rangan Ghosh
Mr. Abhashek Baxi
Rishad Khushrooh Byramjee

Unity Small Finance Bank Limited

Cemtrum Intemationnl Services Pre Lid

Centrum Retail Services Limited

Centrum Capetal Limited

Unaty Small Fanance Bank Ltd

Ignes Capetal Advisors Lid

Ignis Capstal Advisors Limited

Unity Small Finance bank Limited{ Equsty Shares)

Unity Small Finance bank Limited{ Equsty Shares)

Unity Small Finance bank Limited{Share Warrants)
Centrum Retail Services Limited(CWL shares purchased )

JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited

Name of Party

Centrum Brokng Limited

Centrum Capital Lamited (Erstwhile-Centrum Ms dit Lie)

Centrum Capital Limvited

Centrum Wealth Limited

Centrum Capital Limited {Erstwhile-Centrum Microcredis bad)
Unity Small Finance Bank Ltd (Equity Investment)

Unity Small Finance Bank Ld {Investment in Share Warrants)
Centrum Wealth Limited

Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (Paysble Cash Balance)

As wt Mareh 31,

2023

11,000,00

800.00

2022
| 56
21563
153
9292
1612
20747

37.63
24812

1329

1.05
5612

500
45110

014

41057
577

4120
13048

235500
563.74
74l

100
31,601.00
4,349.00
190,00

As at Marc 31,

2023

15,975.00

1,509.14

35,950.00
14000

11,000 00

2022
126 8%

4,869.00

1,509.14

972

3595000
19000

126,89
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